
8 June 2018

To: Councillors Benson, Blackburn, Cain, Campbell, Cross, Jackson, Kirkland, Smith, I Taylor 
and Mrs Wright 

The above members are requested to attend the: 

EXECUTIVE

Monday, 18 June 2018 at 6.00 pm
in Committee Room A, Town Hall, Blackpool

A G E N D A

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in 
doing so state: 

(1) the type of interest concerned either a

(a) personal interest
(b) prejudicial interest 
(c) disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI)

and

(2) the nature of the interest concerned

If any member requires advice on declarations of interests, they are advised to contact 
the Head of Democratic Governance in advance of the meeting.

2 BLACKPOOL AIRPORT ENTERPRISE ZONE MASTERPLAN: DELIVERY PLAN (Pages 1 - 96)

The report for this item is public. However Appendices 2a and 2c contain information 
regarding the negotiations and the proposed or potential courses of action and are 
currently exempt from publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972. It is considered on balance that the public interest 
would be not served by publishing information at this stage

3 COUNCIL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT ON THE SITE OF THE FORMER HOYLE HOUSE 

Public Document Pack



(Pages 97 - 104)

4 CONSIDERATION OF A LEASE FOR THE MUSEUM PROJECT (Pages 105 - 112)

5 PROVISIONAL OUTTURN 2017/2018 (Pages 113 - 144)

6 TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 
(Pages 145 - 164)

Venue information:

First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building.

Other information:

For queries regarding this agenda please contact Lennox Beattie, Executive and Regulatory 
Manager, Tel: (01253) 477157, e-mail lennox.beattie@blackpool.gov.uk

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the 
Council’s website at www.blackpool.gov.uk.

http://www.blackpool.gov.uk/


Report to:                                EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer:                    Alan Cavill, Director of Communications and Regeneration

Relevant Cabinet Member: Councillor Mark Smith, Executive Member for Economic
                                                   Development, Enterprise and Regeneration.
Date of Meeting :                  18 June 2018

BLACKPOOL AIRPORT ENTERPRISE ZONE MASTERPLAN: DELIVERY PLAN

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 Following the Executive’s approval of the Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone 
Masterplan (Decision EX8/2018 refers) on 5 February 2018 this report sets out the 
detail of the associated Delivery Plan essential to secure the economic objectives of 
the Enterprise Zone. It explains its background, the basis on which it has been 
prepared, the likely level of outputs, the potential levels and timing of expenditure 
required to deliver the essential infrastructure, the estimated growth and timing in 
business rate income to support the expenditure, and to seek approval to an initial 3 
year allocation of capital funding to ensure the overall objectives are achieved. 

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1

2.2

2.3

To approve the overall Delivery Plan for Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone based on 
the principles outlined in this report and attached in Appendix 2a (which is not for 
publication) and the associated Marketing Plan in Appendix 2b as the basis of 
securing implementation of the Enterprise Zone Masterplan subject to approval by 
the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership Limited for submission to the Ministry for 
Housing, Communities and Local Government. 

To note the overall estimated lifetime cost estimate of £72.0m (plus Prudential 
Borrowing costs funded at the prevailing treasury management pooled rate) for 
delivering the Enterprise Zone to its end date in 2041 (as set out in Table 4).

To approve the estimated capital cost for the first three years of £28.82m (plus 
Prudential Borrowing costs funded at the prevailing treasury management pooled 
rate) for the delivery of essential infrastructure and associated support for the three 
years 2018/19 to 2020/21 (as set out in Table 3 at paragraph 5.8), and to delegate to 
the Chief Executive, after consultation with the Leader of the Council, to authorise 
expenditure on individual schemes within the three year programme where they 
exceed officer delegation limits and subject to a business case being prepared.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

To approve the strategic acquisition the full details of which are set out in Appendix 
2c (the details of which are not for publication).
 
To note that there will be an annual review of progress and expenditure on the 
Delivery Plan reported to both the Executive and the Lancashire Enterprise 
Partnership.

To authorise the Chief Executive to explore opportunities for securing additional 
private sector investment required to deliver the anticipated level of rates income in 
the Enterprise Zone through Joint Venture Partnerships and design and build 
contractors to support the delivery of Enterprise Zone objectives and potentially 
reduce borrowing costs.

To authorise the Chief Executive to enter into any supplementary agreements or 
protocols with the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership and Fylde Borough Council 
should they be necessary to clarify any elements of the Enterprise Zone 
Memorandum of Understanding.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 A Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) was signed on 9 November 2016 between 
the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership (LEP), Department of Communities and Local 
Government (now Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government), 
Blackpool Council and Fylde Borough Council required, inter alia, that:

 a delivery plan and marketing strategy setting out how the Enterprise Zone 
would be progressed to meet its key objectives, be prepared and submitted 
to the Department for Communities and Local Government (now Ministry for 
Housing, Communities and Local Government) for approval. 

 A governance structure reporting to Ministry for Housing, Communities and 
Local Government and the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership be established 
for the Enterprise Zone, with Blackpool Council designated as the Enterprise 
Zone Accountable Body on behalf of Lancashire Enterprise Partnership. 

Blackpool Council therefore has responsibility for ensuring that the economic 
potential of Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone (EZ) is maximised, and to utilise the 
time-limited fiscal tools (Retained Business Rate Growth, Business Rate incentives 
and Enhanced Capital Allowances) granted by central government as part and parcel 
of Enterprise Zone status.

Central Government granted Enterprise Zone status through the Lancashire 
Enterprise Partnership and the channel for reporting back to Government in respect 

Page 2



         
      
 

of progress on the Enterprise Zone is via the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership. For 
this reason the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership is required to approve the Delivery 
Plan and its use of Enterprise Zone generated revenues.

Because much of the investment required to deliver the essential infrastructure to 
create the opportunities for business rate growth is inevitably required up front, in 
order to maximise the benefits it is necessary for Blackpool, as accountable body to 
prudentially borrow against the future growth in order to ensure that it occurs and 
the benefits of investment and jobs are realised.

Whilst estimates of what will happen over the 25 years of the Delivery Plan are an 
important part of the plan, the focus has been on securing the minimum 
commitment from the Council to ensure early progress over the first 3 years and in 
view of the inherent uncertainty with a project of this scale for there to be an annual 
review of progress before making further commitments to a rolling programme of 
investment over the lifetime of the Enterprise Zone.

The Delivery Plan includes provision for several key acquisitions necessary to deliver 
the benefits of the Masterplan, the case for a further one being set out in Appendix 
2c.
 
At this stage the main priority is to create certainty in the market place that the 
Masterplan is to be implemented and whilst this requires financial cover from the 
Council, the risk, scale and complexity of investment required to maximise delivery of 
the Enterprise Zone is such that it would be difficult to achieve utilising only 
Blackpool Council resource and expertise. For this reason discussions are taking place 
with potential investors and joint venture partners who can help mitigate the risk for 
the Council and accelerate delivery. All discussions at present are at an early stage 
but will be assessed utilising independent advice.

Although 55% of the Enterprise Zone is in Fylde and 45% in Blackpool, Blackpool 
Council is now the major freehold landowner at the Enterprise Zone since its 
purchase of Blackpool Airport in September 2017. It also shares responsibility as 
planning and rating authority with Fylde Council and therefore has the greatest level 
of influence and control in the delivery of the Enterprise Zone which if fully exploited, 
will have a very significant positive economic impact upon Blackpool and the wider 
Fylde coast area. 

Fylde Borough Council, whilst not leading on the delivery of the Masterplan is 
providing direct support to the Enterprise Zone delivery team and is responsible for 
collecting a significant proportion of the business rates growth that will be relied 
upon to fund recommended Enterprise Zone investment. Whilst the Memorandum of 
Understanding clarifies the key principles in relation to how the Enterprise Zone will 
be delivered there may be the need for more detailed agreements with the 

Page 3



Lancashire Enterprise Partnership and Fylde Borough Council in respect of:-

 the protocols and priorities for use of all retained Business Rates Growth in the 
Enterprise Zone

 contributions to offsite schemes essential to the delivery of the Enterprise Zone 
(e.g. a contribution to the M55 link road). 

 where appropriate contributions from S106 (planning) and  S278 (highway) 
agreements can be promptly applied to support delivery activity across the whole 
Enterprise Zone

 Clarity in respect of purchase and disposal of land and property to enable the 
Enterprise Zone delivery (e.g. the construction of new access roads, and ensure 
transparency where the Council seeks to engage directly in commercial property 
development within the Enterprise Zone)       

In order to ensure the successful delivery of the Enterprise Zone it will be necessary 
to continue to incur expenditure on staff resource to direct and monitor activity, 
market the Enterprise Zone opportunity to attract commercial occupier interest, and 
to employ specialist consultants to provide independent advice on legal and 
commercial matters, design, cost and technical work in respect of the enabling 
infrastructure. These costs are included in the overall estimates contained within the 
amount for which approval is being sought. 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council?

No

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget?

Yes

3.3 Other alternative options that could be considered:

a) Relinquish the Council’s role as accountable body and allow Lancashire LEP to take 
responsibility for delivery 

b) Sell off the Council’s property interest in the Enterprise Zone and Blackpool Airport 
and rely upon third parties to bring forward development and associated economic 
benefits 

c) Delay a decision on progressing delivery of the Enterprise Zone until external risk-
sharing Joint Venture partners have been identified and secured   

d) Reduce the scope of the works in the earlier years  
e) Fylde Borough Council could be approached to forward- fund the initial investment 

in the Enterprise Zone.

Options a), b) and c) would cede control to third parties and are likely to result in a sub-
optimal long term economic benefits as there would not be the same commitment to, or 
capacity for focused delivery from organisations with broader interests. They would also 

Page 4



restrict the Council’s opportunity as the major land owner to capitalise fully on its 
ownership. The delay associated with Option c) would also restrict the availability of time-
limited financial benefits available to occupiers and thus inhibit the rate of growth 
(although it is intended to pursue risk-sharing partners to help implement the Delivery 
Plan. With Option d), whilst this would reduce the initial costs it would also reduce 
substantially the potential for business rate generation and minimise the growth prospects 
of the Enterprise Zone. Consideration has been given to implementation covering the first 
5 years but 3 years is assessed as being the minimum necessary to secure a meaningful 
implementation commitment to start to deliver substantial Enterprise Zone benefits. 
Option e) is unlikely to result in an expedient decision from Fylde as it would be changing 
the basis of the currently agreed delivery arrangements and would impact upon timely 
delivery of the key initial activity.  Discussions on progress on the Enterprise Zone and 
methods of delivery will, however, continue to be held with Fylde throughout the lifetime 
of the Enterprise Zone. 

4.0 Council Priority

4.1 The relevant Council priority is: “The Economy – maximising growth and opportunity 
across Blackpool Council”

5.0 Background Information

5.1 The Enterprise Zone timeline is set out below :-
 January 2015 - initial bid for Enterprise Zone status made at very short notice in 

2015.  
 November 2015 - Enterprise Zone status awarded. 
 1 April 2016 - the Enterprise Zone commenced with a designated 25 year life to 

2041. 
 18 July 2016 – initial enabling funding of £1.6m over 5 years approved by 

Blackpool Council. 
 9 November 2016 - Memorandum of Understanding signed. 
 December 2016 - Enterprise Zone Business rates growth baseline set becoming 

operative from the 1 April 2017.
 January 2017 – Department for Communities and Local Government  grant 

funding of £50,000 awarded for masterplanning.  
 March 2017 - Enterprise Zone Masterplan commissioned from Mott MacDonald 
 September 2017 - Blackpool Council acquire Blackpool Airport.  
 October to December 2017 – draft Enterprise Zone Masterplan public 

consultation undertaken.
 5 February 2018 - Enterprise Zone Masterplan approved by Executive. 
 7 February 2018 – Enterprise Zone Masterplan approved by Planning Committee 

at Fylde Borough Council.
 31 March 2022 – deadline for Enterprise Zone Business rates relief available to 

Page 5



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

qualifying business for five years occupying by this date.
 23 November 2023 - Enterprise Zone Enhanced Capital Allowances up to 125m 

Euros available to qualifying business until this date
 31 March 2041 - Enterprise Zone end date 

Early Progress

The first two operational years of the Enterprise Zone have focused on completion of 
the Masterplan and Delivery Plan and activity to re-establish market interest and 
development activity, seeking to fill existing vacant accommodation particularly on 
Blackpool Business Park, and improve rentals and land values to a level where 
commercial development can be viable. 

To-date more than 625 jobs have located within the Enterprise Zone since April 2016 
and over 150 enquiries generated, several for bespoke developments which can only 
be satisfied when new development sites are enabled. Five new developments have 
been completed, including the Lancashire Energy HQ, which together currently 
contribute circa £700,000 per year of retained business rates 

The acquisition of Blackpool Airport removed one of the biggest obstacles to 
progressing the Enterprise Zone and permitted a more ambitious approach in the 
Masterplan and the more detailed business plan now being prepared for the Airport 
with York Aviation. 

The Delivery Plan 
Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government requires the Accountable 
body to produce a Delivery (or Implementation) Plan as a tool to track delivery by 
local partners to reassure them that there is a realistic approach being adopted and 
an ability to deliver. They are to be live documents which are updated as Enterprise 
Zone delivery progresses. As a minimum Delivery Plans are expected to cover:
 An introduction to the Enterprise Zone to cover site details, commercial 

proposition and/or sectoral target markets, and delivery outputs by 2022;
 The project plan to 2022 to cover: investment plan; delivery risks; formal 

management, governance and delivery arrangements; marketing and 
communications plan; and delivery monitoring mechanisms;

 Maps and plans showing the boundaries of the tax incentive areas;
 Baseline business rates data – a snapshot of the estimated net rates income from 

December 2016.

Whilst Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government is looking at a 
relatively high level assurance on ability to deliver, it is vital for the Accountable Body 
to have a full understanding of:

 the potential level of expenditure required to deliver the Enterprise Zone,

Page 6



5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

 the potential it has to generate income from retained business rates,
 the level of prudential borrowing to fund enabling works and support 

revenue-based delivery 
 any other income that can be achieved eg rental, asset sale or grant income 

Genecon were appointed to help produce the Delivery Plan. Infrastructure costs and 
business rates income have been re-assessed building on the foundation of the 
Masterplan. These new projections have then been combined to form an Investment 
Plan for the Enterprise Zone that highlights expenditure requirements, revenue 
income from business rates and capital receipts from plot sales and any other 
funding sources (for example, Sport England).

The modelling then enabled an assessment of the level of borrowing needed to 
wholly deliver the Masterplan. Timing/phasing of development (floorspace take-up 
profile) and infrastructure delivery are also derived from the Masterplan informed by 
local property market information and industry knowledge of what is feasibly 
deliverable within a particular time frame. The Delivery Plan (Appendix 2a) includes 
the assumptions on which it is based, the validity of which will be reviewed on an 
annual basis. 

The initial outputs from the modelling produce high levels of potential jobs and rates 
income. These have been adjusted to account for and remove optimism bias and 
arrive at a realistic forecast (for example a factor of 40% has been applied to 
represent jobs which will be displaced to the Enterprise Zone from other parts of the 
Fylde coast). Gross Valued Added estimates have then been produced. The potential 
cumulative business rates growth has also been reduced from an optimistic £107m to 
£73.31m. These adjustments provide a level of comfort that the Delivery Plan is 
realistic and that the projected incomes may in certain favourable circumstances 
exceed those projected. The further into the future estimates extend the greater the 
element of uncertainty as they can be impacted by many as yet unknown external 
factors outside of the Authority’s control.      
   
The Delivery Plan comprises a written narrative which sets out the background 
justification and approach as well as the headline figures on cost and expenditure 
based on a comprehensive series of spreadsheets. The initial Enterprise Zone bid of 
January 2015 estimated the Enterprise Zone had the potential to enable 3,000 new 
jobs, 130 new businesses and an estimate of around £300m of private sector 
investment with potential to generate £63m retained business rates growth over the 
life of the Enterprise Zone with an anticipated delivery cost in the mid £20m range, 
these figures being based on an initial untested assessment of the scale scope and 
timing of new development.

Page 7



5.11

5.12

5.13

The Masterplan approved in February 2018 has been used to define the full potential 
of the Enterprise Zone to deliver floorspace from which job numbers, economic 
impacts and the revenue potential from business rates growth, together with related 
property transactions on land sales, has been more accurately estimated and the full 
extent of enabling infrastructure and its cost assessed. 

Overall these revised estimates, shown in Table 1, identify:
  an increased level of potential employment with approx. 5,000 additional 

jobs estimated. 
  a cumulative Gross Valued Added total over the five years of £232m and 

£2.08bn over the Enterprise Zone lifetime.
  significantly increased infrastructure and delivery costs as the full extent of 

required infrastructure is understood, and additional elements including 
strategic land acquisitions and allowance for contributions to the cost of 
developing alternative operational airport infrastructure to release land for 
development have been included.

 higher potential income from retained business rates growth adjusted to 
allow for optimism bias on potential take up and displacement of firms locally.

Source: Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone Delivery Plan

The Masterplan identified the key activities to progress the full implementation of 
the Enterprise Zone and it identified three broad time-related phases of 
infrastructure activity to open up development plots. Some elements will take 
several years to fully implement and for this reason, the first three years, which is the 
minimum level of commitment necessary to optimise early delivery, will involve 
various works some of which are preparatory for delivering benefits in later years.

  Table 1 : Enterprise Zone  Outputs

Original Business Case Approved Masterplan
2018-22
1st 5 years

Lifetime 
Total

2018-22
1st 5 years

Lifetime
Total

Numbers of occupying 
businesses 60 137 133 284

Floorspace take-up (sqm) 129,069 176,791 95,518 270,002

Net Jobs profile 2,009 3,027 1,513 4,989
Generated annual business 
rates

£2.45M
by 2022

£3.48m 
by 2038

£1.75m by 
2022

£5.19m by 
2038

Cumulative business rates 
generated £7.2m £63.01m £3.60m £73.31m

Cumulative Gross Value Added n/a n/a £231.94m £2.08bn

Page 8



5.14 First 3 Years (2018/19 – 2020/21)
During the next three years it is planned, subject to all necessary approvals that:
 the Enterprise Zone will continue to see the development of the remaining third 

party serviced plots within the existing Blackpool Business Park, including  the 
first air-side related development at the edge of the operational airfield.

 The existing Common Edge Sports pitches will be fully relocated, to provide state 
of the art facilities including two floodlit 3G pitches, an indoor tennis facility 
supported from a modern changing complex which will also double as a 
community facility for the Enterprise Zone; including café and other small scale 
commercial facilities which will generate income to support the running costs of 
the complex. 

 A site for some 26 -30 new residential properties on Common Edge road will have 
been released and sold to private developers with construction having 
commenced. 

 A new access road and gateway entrance linking Common Edge Road to Amy 
Johnson Way will have been completed relieving the existing traffic congestion at 
the single point of entry to Blackpool Business Park, and opening up large 
serviced development plots n the former common edge playing fields, providing 
development opportunity from 2020 onward following completion of the ongoing 
local plan process which will inter alia release the land from its present greenbelt 
status.

 Construction of the first of several bespoke design and build developments will 
be underway on the Common Edge site. 

 Exciting designs will have been agreed for the phased refurbishment and 
development of the former Wellington Bomber Factory site to meet market 
demand. Enhanced marketing and management activity will have secured 
additional income from temporary meanwhile use of the site and buildings, 
including the potential of a film studio/sound stage, with activity to relocate 
existing occupiers where appropriate well advanced. It is possible that new 
roadside development will have been secured along Squires Gate Lane frontage 
with development partners in place.

 Outline planning permission for the reconfiguration of Blackpool Airport will have 
been secured and the existing Offshore Helicopter terminal relocated to support 
a new operational contract for offshore support which will underpin the airports 
operational sustainability for the next decade.  The first new hangars will also 
have been constructed and occupied releasing land for development along 
Squires Gate Frontage. New navigational aids, including a virtual control tower 
will be in place, to support ongoing operations and the provision of new aviation 
facilities in the second phase of the Enterprise Zone.

 Design and build partners will have been identified and secured to deliver initial 
bespoke development, and one or more risk sharing investor/ developer 

Page 9



5.15

5.16

partnerships agreed to help take forward the development of the Airport, former 
Wellington Bomber Factory and the old sports field complex.  

 The branding for the Enterprise Zone will be well established, with a reputation 
secured as one of the North’s premier business locations, with efficient enquiry 
generation, handling and development management systems in place.                

Plan 1 below shows where activity in the first 3 years of delivery (for which funding is 
now being sought) will be undertaken. These areas include for the delivery of 
essential infrastructure and associated supporting costs (including for example site 
assembly and regulatory approval) whilst also seeking to generate as much revenue 
as possible in the early years. 

The phasing of delivery over the first 3 years will be led by Council development/ 
activity within Area 1 (shown in Green). These areas lead delivery as they are the key 
to unlock land and sites for disposal and hence revenue. Following this Council led 
development/activity will occur within the airport estate in Area 3 (shown in Yellow) 
to allow for redevelopment (in future years) of other lands currently occupied by 
airport buildings. Throughout the first three years it is anticipated that various 
private and public sector developments will take place across various sites in Area 2 
(shown in Blue).

Plan 1 – Proposed Implementation - First 3 Years Only (2018/19 – 2020/21)

Page 10



5.17 Table 2 summarises the main activity planned to take place in each area within the 
first three years (to 2020/21) and the associated cost estimates.

Table 2 – Description of Activity shown in Plan 1 : First 3 years only 

Area Description Cost Estimate
Area 1 
(Green)

Relocation of existing Common Edge sports 
facilities including provision of two third 
generation floodlit pitches, with potentially 
additional sports and leisure facilities to open 
up Common Edge Greenbelt lands for 
development of larger footplate 
manufacturing and distribution 
accommodation (B2/B8)

£3.9m 

Area 1 
(Green)

Provision of a new Eastern access route from 
Common Edge/Queensway, together with 
associated drainage and utilities which will 
also serve subsequent phases

£5.9m

Area 1 
(Green)

Other acquisitions, works allowances and 
activity including extension of new access 
route, contingency & EIA archaeology

£0.595m

Area 2 (Blue) Commercial development and/or 
redevelopment of sites by private sector 
and/or public sector or through JV 
partnerships 

£5.94m /private 
sector

Area 3 
(Yellow)

Acquisition and relocation of outdated 
operational aviation infrastructure at 
Blackpool Airport including control tower, 
hangars, fuel farm and aircraft parking 
aprons and other operational buildings 
particularly for helicopter based operations

£3.9m

Not shown on 
Plan 1

Enabling acquisitions and disturbance costs 
(including those previously completed eg 
Blackpool Airport) to support the delivery of 
the Enterprise Zone

£6.8m

Not shown on 
Plan 1

Other works, allowances, consultancy costs, 
Enterprise Zone management and marketing 

£1.785

TOTAL ESTIMATED COSTS 2018-2020 £28.82m 

Table 3 summarises these same costs by broad type of activity. With such a large 
programme there will inevitably be some overlap between these activities as the 
scheme evolves.
 

Page 11



5.18

5.19

5.20

5.21

Table 3 – Summary of Capital Expenditure First 3 Years 

Description 2018-2020
Infrastructure £6.55m
Direct Development £3.45m
Consultancy / Fees £0.67m
EZ Delivery £1.055m
Other Costs £3.785m
Land Acquisition Costs £13.31m
GRAND TOTAL COSTS £ 28.82m

Source: Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone Delivery Plan

Land receipts and business rates growth will flow from the development sites 
created. These income streams will continue beyond the life of each individual phase 
with the retained rates growth being collected for the remaining life of the Enterprise 
Zone and some sales of land in the phases not being completed until subsequent 
development phases are underway.           

The Masterplan depicts how the Enterprise Zone may develop over the remaining 23 
years, but it is recognised that the economic environment in which it exists will 
continually evolve and a full review of the Masterplan will be undertaken every five 
years to take cognisance of what has been achieved and new opportunities and 
challenges. Table 4 shows the estimated costs of delivering the total indicative 
development for the Enterprise Zone as shown in the Masterplan.

Table 4 – Enterprise Zone Total Project Lifetime Estimated Costs 
 

Source: Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone Delivery Plan

The Delivery Team
In July 2016, the Council approved up to an initial £1.6m over five years (equating to 
£320,000 per year) to support the delivery of the Enterprise Zone – subject to that 
pump priming funding being recouped over time via retained business rates growth 

Page 12



5.22

5.23

5.24

and partner contributions. Up to 31 March 2018, some £295,000 of that expenditure 
has been incurred in relation to the Enterprise Zone. A small group dedicated to 
Enterprise Zone delivery, including an officer seconded by Fylde BC   is embedded 
within the Growth and Prosperity team. This team has laid the foundations for the 
Enterprise Zone and overseen the production of the Masterplan and Delivery plan 
undertaking initial promotion of the Enterprise Zone including the development and 
implementation of the rates relief protocol.

The Delivery Plan has identified the need for annual revenue support (direct revenue 
costs and consultancy support) over the next three year period equating to £575,000 
per year, to replace the existing balance of £1.3m allocated revenue funding. The 
guaranteed retained business rate income over the lifetime of the Enterprise Zone 
and the present annual forecast retained rates growth are already sufficient to 
recoup this expenditure even if no further development was secured.    

Fiscal Incentives to Occupiers
The fiscal incentives available  to qualifying new occupiers within the Enterprise Zone 
are only available for a short period of time, Business Rates Relief (available to 
occupiers for 5 years so long as they occupy before 31 March 2022) and Enhanced 
Capital Allowances (until November 2023)  provides only a very short window of 
opportunity to utilise these incentives to generate the development and occupier 
momentum essential to establish the Enterprise Zone as a desirable business location 
and to maximise income potential    

Marketing Strategy
The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government requires the Delivery 
Plan to be accompanied by a brief marketing strategy proposal identifying how the 
Enterprise Zone is to be promoted. Marketing and promotional activity for the 
Enterprise Zone will be undertaken in partnership with Marketing Lancashire, who, 
on behalf of the Local Enterprise Partnership, will be undertaking international 
marketing of Lancashire’s four Enterprise Zones under the LAMEC (Lancashire 
Advanced Manufacturing and Engineering Cluster) branding, and will engage an 
international marketing agent to assist in overseas promotion. The majority of 
marketing activity will be managed at a local level within the Growth and Prosperity 
Team, and a dedicated Enterprise Zone marketing officer has been appointed, and 
will be supported by local property marketing agents. The proposed high level 
marketing strategy is at Appendix 2b. A detailed annual marketing plan will be 
prepared. 

Page 13



5.25 Is the Corporate Delivery Unit aware of this report?

The Corporate Delivery Unit has been involved in a number of stages in
the development of the Masterplan and supports the process undertaken.

Yes

5.26 Does the information submitted include any exempt information?  Yes 

Appendices 2a and 2c contain confidential information regarding
Potential acquistions in the Enterprise Zone. These Appendices include 
information the negotiations and the proposed or potential courses of 
action and are currently exempt from publication by virtue of Paragraph 3 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. It is considered 
on balance that the public interest would be not served by publishing 
information at this stage

5.27 List of Appendices:
Appendix 2a. Delivery Plan   (Confidential and not for publication)
Appendix 2b. Marketing Strategy 
Appendix 2c. Strategic Acquisition in the Enterprise Zone (Confidential and not for 
publication)

6.0 Legal considerations:

6.1

6.2

The Delivery Plan, if approved, will be submitted for consideration (and approval) 
by Lancashire Enterprise Partnership and by Mini – these will not create any 
legally binding commitments or obligations for Blackpool Council as Enterprise 
Zone accountable body. It is anticipated that all land transactions and each 
significant element of infrastructure provision within the Enterprise Zone will be 
subject of individual business case approvals and contracts.

It may be that any agreements negotiated with Fylde Borough Council and 
Lancashire Enterprise Partnership in respect of funding approvals and 
contributions will require the Council to enter into  legal agreements but these 
will be subject to separate approvals   

7.0 Human Resources considerations:

7.1 An existing team of four officers whose primary focus is the delivery of the 
Enterprise Zone are in post including one officer seconded four days per week 
from Fylde Borough Council. Personnel from the wider Growth and Prosperity 
team augment the capacity of the Enterprise Zone team as required. As the 
delivery phase of the project accelerates it may be necessary to recruit additional 
staff with specialist capabilities and to engage specialist external consultants and 

Page 14



7.2

advisors, the cost of whom are included within the revenue elements identified in 
the Delivery Plan.

There will be some additional call upon time of officers within the legal, business 
rates and resources teams to support development and procurement activity – 
potential cost are again reflected within the revenue expenditure forecasts of the 
Delivery Plan.      

8.0 Equalities considerations:

8.1 None anticipated.

9.0 Financial considerations: 

9.1

9.2

9.3

The award of Enterprise Zone status does not provide any direct funding to 
support delivery as Enterprise Zones are essentially required to be self-funding. 
Enterprise Zone status does however enable the Accountable body to retain 
100% of any new business rates generated within the Enterprise Zone over the 
agreed baseline set in 2017, are retained  for the lifetime of the Enterprise Zone. 
This funding stream may be directly applied to the delivery of the Enterprise Zone 
or utilised to enable Prudential Borrowing to fund advanced enabling works and 
other delivery costs without which the economic potential of the Enterprise Zone 
cannot be unlocked. The retained rates growth is only available to be used by the 
accountable public body and cannot be accessed directly by private sector 
stakeholders.  

In respect of Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone, the date from which business 
rates growth could be retained commenced on 1 April 2017 with the baseline set 
in December 2016 at £2.373M (£1,503,000 for Blackpool and £870,000 for Fylde). 
Where voids occur in respect of rates payable for existing property included 
within the baseline, these have to be backfilled from the new business rates  
growth  before any surplus can be applied to the Enterprise Zone  – for example  
these voids will occur where existing buildings are demolished to enable future 
development within the Enterprise Zone –including the  older airport operational 
property and the former Wellington Bomber factory, a deduction allowance of 
the baseline (equivalent to £118,000 per year) has been built into the business 
rates projections  reflected in the delivery plan.

In broad terms the funding of the Enterprise Zone is something of a ‘chicken and 
egg’ situation with the potential to generate income from new business rates 
dependent upon provision of enabling infrastructure which has to be funded – 
and the earlier the rates growth can be secured the greater the amount available 
to fund the enabling costs. 

Page 15



9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

Some growth in business rates has already been achieved at the Enterprise Zone 
since April 2016, with new build development on third party land including an 
Aldi food store, Blackpool and the Fylde College’s Lancashire Energy HQ and three 
industrial units.  The forecast rates growth estimate for the year to March 2018 is 
marginally above £700,000, but the net figure will vary from year to year.  

The rates billing authorities for the Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone (Blackpool 
Council and Fylde Borough Council) will retain and release all retained business 
rates within the Enterprise Zone for use by the Accountable Body

The Memorandum of Understanding of November 2016, establishes the principle 
that all such retained rates growth, whether raised in the Fylde or Blackpool 
sectors of the Enterprise Zone, is initially to be directed to support Blackpool 
Airport Enterprise Zone and thereafter, if there is any surplus, toward a hierarchy 
of Hillhouse Enterprise Zone, other local economic development activity and only 
then the wider area. It will be many years before it is clear whether or not an 
actual surplus available to fund initiatives beyond the Blackpool Airport 
Enterprise Zone will be realised.

It is clear from the analysis undertaken for the Delivery Plan that major up-front 
investment is required to open up development plots and promote the Enterprise 
Zone, and that these costs cannot be met simply by utilising cash flow from 
business rates growth, and that significant levels of Prudential Borrowing against 
the anticipated resultant growth is therefore required to fund this essential new 
infrastructure.

Scheme Cashflow Total to 2020 Total to 2022 Total to 2040
Surplus /(Deficit ) (£24.4m) (£31.2m) £0.5m

The Council is undertaking this project in furtherance of it objective of maximising 
growth and opportunity across Blackpool and the wider Fylde coast area. The 
analysis of the cash flow shows that in the first 3 years of development, receipts, 
including business rates growth generated in the Fylde sector, will meet the cost 
of the prudential borrowing if the delivery plan is supported in terms of the 
projected timeframes and the level of enabling infrastructure envisaged above.  It 
is proposed to manage any fluctuations in scheme funding up to 2020 via Council 
reserves. We will then undertake a formal review to ascertain the most 
appropriate method of long term funding. In assessing the overall cash-flow 
generated by the Delivery Plan, Blackpool Council is a substantial owner of 
property within the Enterprise Zone, and may potentially acquire additional 
property, and will be able to generate additional receipts from, property rental, 
land sales and/or direct development of premises, which can all be utilised to 

Page 16



9.9

10.0

support cash flow for the delivery costs.

It is also possible that significant grant funding may be secured toward the cost of 
relocation of upgraded sports facilities from Sport England, and this has been 
reflected in the Delivery Plan forecast. Additional funding could also be secured 
by entering into Joint venture partnerships for elements of the Enterprise Zone 
and Blackpool Airport, reducing the need for prudential borrowing or by sales to 
third parties. It is considered, however, that best value from this approach will 
only be achieved after the initial enabling infrastructure has been provided and 
confidence in the EZ established. Whilst Joint Venture development routes would 
come at the cost of some control it is an avenue which warrants further 
exploration to help offset costs and risk. As there is no certainty yet that this 
route can be beneficially adopted it has not been reflected in the Delivery Plan at 
this stage.   

The Government’s recently announced Local Infrastructure rate initiative also 
offers the opportunity potentially to reduce the costs of infrastructure provision 
for the Council, an opportunity that will be further considered.

Risk Management Considerations

10.1

10.2

10.3

The Delivery Plan represents a snap shot of one potential approach to the 
delivery of Blackpool Airport Enterprise Zone and there is a significant risk that 
delivery will not follow the path identified, with delayed delivery, higher cost 
and lower outputs possible – the plan is a living document which will be subject 
to constant monitoring and adjustment to mitigate negative impacts and 
maximise deliverable outputs. It will also be subject to a formal annual review.

Failure or delay in approving the Delivery Plan, will at the very least reduce the 
ability of the Enterprise Zone to deliver very significant potential economic 
benefits of jobs and Gross Value Added, and for the council to maximise the 
benefit of short term Enterprise Zone fiscal incentives

The Delivery Plan includes a detailed consideration of risks and has been 
prepared with consultants employed by the Council to provide a challenging 
assessment of the viability of the Enterprise Zone project for the satisfaction of 
the Council (and the Lancashire Enterprise Partnership and Government). The 
following section presents a brief summary of the most substantive risks. The 
conclusion of a careful consideration of the key risks faced in taking this project 
forward is that it remains unavoidable that considerable investment is required 
before potential future income and economic benefits can be achieved. This risk 
is inherent and inseparable from the Enterprise Zone project.

Page 17



Risk Mitigation/Consideration
1. Blackpool Council act as Accountable 

Body and have sole financial 
responsibility for the delivery of the 
Enterprise Zone project

Consideration has been given to 
seeking to change the agreed 
MoU to spread financial risk, but 
this could also result in changing 
responsibilities for delivery and 
potential sharing of future 
revenues. This would slow 
delivery and there is currently no 
reasonable prospect of this 
approach being successful. The 
approach has therefore been to 
seek the minimum financial 
exposure by the Council to the 
financial risk to enable an 
optimum level of benefits to be 
achieved. The means of 
controlling the level of financial 
risk the Council is exposed to is by 
requiring a business plan to be 
prepared for investment. In 
addition there will be an annual 
review of the overall programme 
to ensure the level of financial risk 
is reflective of the benefits being 
delivered. . 

2. Scale and scope of infrastructure 
investment being too challenging if:

a) Costs increase
b) Scale of works increase
c) Additional works are 

necessary

In composing the Delivery Plan the 
Council has undertaken a detailed 
consideration of the level of 
investment and commitment 
needed to achieve a ‘critical mass’ 
to establish momentum. The 
phased approach to the delivery 
of infrastructure strikes the right 
balance and ensures that the scale 
and scope of infrastructure 
investment is deliverable without 
being too onerous.
a) Costs have been assessed in 

line with industry guidance 
and both the Masterplan and 
Delivery Plan have built in 

Page 18



‘allowances and contingencies’ 
as well as taking account of 
any optimism bias. Therefore 
costs estimates are reasonable 
and capable of 
accommodating considerable 
changes

b) Additional investigations into 
the scale of works have been 
commissioned (or have been 
completed) particularly in 
relation to the highways 
investments, airport 
infrastructure and ‘sports 
village’ development. These 
studies have (or in draft) 
reached conclusions that are 
in-line with the Masterplan or 
Delivery Plan. This provides 
confidence that the scale of 
works has been 
comprehensively assessed.

c) In combination both 
mitigation/consideration a) 
and b) provide confidence that 
were additional works to 
become necessary these 
should be capable of being 
provided for within the 
planned budget. 

3. Level of commitment needed by the 
Council (in finance and years)

In balancing risks and outcomes 
the optimum commitment needed 
is three years; amounting to some 
£6.6m of infrastructure 
investment, but a total of c£28m 
including land acquisitions 
(including Blackpool Airport) and 
management costs. 

To commit to fewer years would 
see insufficient infrastructure 
delivered to unlock land and bring 
forward development and would 
not achieve the momentum 

Page 19



necessary to optimize the returns 
for a project of this scale. 

Committing to more years would 
give confidence to the commercial 
property market and allow for 
certainty over the provision of 
more infrastructure (resulting in 
achieving beneficial outcomes 
sooner) but could leave the 
Council exposed to a higher level 
of financial risk that is at present 
deemed unnecessary and perhaps 
less able to rapidly respond to  
changing environments.

4. Lack of demand for land impacting 
upon future potential revenues

The Delivery Plan by necessity 
must include a projection of 
future demand for land and 
includes considerable disposal of 
sites rather than direct 
development; to maximise capital 
returns within the medium term 
of the project. This projection has 
been based on up to date market 
information, transacted land 
values, evidence from commercial 
agents, evidence of current rental 
levels and a consideration of take 
of land for employment purposes. 

These projections are fully 
reflective of the local property 
market and are generally regarded  
to be more ‘prudent’ than 
‘bullish’.

Without providing the enabling 
infrastructure the Enterprise Zone 
will soon have less than 1 hectare 
of developable employment land 
available; average annual land 
consumption for Blackpool and 
Fylde combined is more than 4 
hectares per year. This provides a 

Page 20



level of strategic comfort that the 
demand for future land will be in-
line with projections. Both Fylde 
and Blackpool Council are the 
planning authorities for their 
respective areas and therefore 
have some control over the supply 
of other ‘competing’ land.

5. Lack of demand for premises from 
end users.

The Council can offer in early 
years of within the Enterprise 
Zone business rate relief and 
Enhanced Capital Allowances (at 
no cost to the Council); both of 
which serve to d encourage 
businesses to invest in and occupy 
premises in the Enterprise Zone. 
This benefit is not available 
outside of the Enterprise Zone and 
should serve to help mitigate the 
risk of lack of demand for 
premises. If the infrastructure is 
not provided in the next three 
years the full benefit of these ‘no 
cost’ incentives will lost. 
The Enterprise Zone delivery team 
now includes an officer with 
responsibility for marketing, 
promotion and enquiry handling. 
This will serve to assist and 
encourage business to invest in 
and occupy premises in the 
Enterprise Zone.

6. Lack of Commercial developers to 
bring forward developments. 

The Enterprise Zone financial 
model is based upon the Council 
acting as the initial enabling body 
of the project buying land and 
putting in infrastructure to then 
provide land for future years 
developments by either 
development partners or private 
developers. The £300m of joint / 
private investment modelled will 
be subject to the economic and 
commercial property cycles which 

Page 21



will inevitably occur over the 25 
year time frame of this project. 
The team cannot plan for or easily 
mitigate against these risks. The 
annual review process will be used 
to seek to manage down this risk 
year by year.

Once the programme for provision 
of enabling infrastructure is 
established it will be possible to 
actively seek suitable  partners to 
assist in delivering development , 
but whilst the enterprise zone 
values and yields are improved to 
the point where development is 
fully commercially viable it is likely 
that the council may have to 
undertake a significant  pump 
priming role in the delivery of new 
development 

7. Loss of Enterprise Zone status from 
Government if; 

a) a ‘do nothing’ option is 
chosen

b) other Governmental changes 
to policy

a) Submitting a Delivery Plan that 
made clear that the Council’s 
intention was to no longer 
directly intervene, but rather 
support the Enterprise Zone 
passively, may suggest to 
Government that the benefits 
of the Enterprise Zone are no 
longer needed and could be 
better used elsewhere in the 
UK. 

b) the financial consequences of 
this, following the first full 
year of operation of the 
Enterprise Zone, the retained 
business rates growth 
currently amounts to some 
£700k per annum. These 
monies would be available in 
the short term to fund 
Enterprise Zone expenditure. 
There is significant uncertainty 

Page 22



as to how long we would 
retain 100% rate retention if 
the economic, financial and 
social objectives of the 
Enterprise Zone are not being 
achieved. 

c) The business plan is based on 
100% retention of the NNDR 
generated by the Enterprise 
Zone over 25 years. This is 
fundamental to the viability of 
the project. Any changes to 
NNDR legislation regarding 
revaluations, appeals or more 
fundamental changes to the 
underlying tax itself add 
potential financial risk to the 
project. There is little the 
Council can do to mitigate 
against this risk. Were this to 
occur the Council would have 
to interact with Government 
on how it dealt with potential 
expenditure already incurred.
 We have sought to mitigate 
against appeals/ revaluations 
by introducing a provision 
based on Council’s historical 
experience, in setting the rates 
baseline and in tackling 
optimism bias in estimating 
future rates growth . 

Government could withdraw/ 
amend Enterprise Zone status 
and therefore the ability of the 
Council to retain 100% of 
growth in business rates above 
the baseline. Similarly 
Government could change any 
of the existing legislation and 
regulations concerning 
Enterprise Zones. Were this to 

Page 23



occur the Council would be 
able to interact with 
Government on dealing with 
potential expenditure already 
incurred. This is an inherent 
risk of delivering this project 
but is mitigated by 
undertaking an annual review 
of progress and, if necessary, 
adjusting the delivery strategy 
accordingly.

8. Failure to control all necessary land 
within the Enterprise Zone

The Council currently owns 70% of 
the freehold of the Enterprise 
Zone (although much of the 
existing business park has 
leasehold interests).

It is usually more difficult to 
influence third party landowners 
to undertake delivery in harmony 
with the masterplan than it is 
where assets are under direct 
control.
 
Should control of essential land 
not be possible/affordable, or 
should it be delayed, then the 
Enterprise Zone may take longer 
to achieve reduced economic, 
social and financial objectives and 
the masterplan would have to be 
modified. 

Within the programme there is 
provision included for further land 
acquisitions. This approach 
balances the need for prudence 
with the need to meet the 
ambitious objectives of the 
Enterprise Zone. 

9. Interdependence between Blackpool 
Airport, current land holdings and the 
Enterprise Zone

The Council currently owns a 
considerable amount of land 
within the EZ and in particular the 
airport. There is an 

Page 24



interdependence between the 
objectives of the Enterprise Zone 
and the ambitions to improve, 
grow and develop a sustainable  
airport. 

In particular the airport 
operational facilities need to be  
modernized and relocated closer 
together and closer to the runway 
to improve operational efficiency 
releasing some of the land the 
airport currently occupies to 
support the objectives of the 
Enterprise Zone.

Mitigation is not appropriate for 
this risk but consideration of it is 
the presence of a fully operational 
airport will also act as a significant 
marketing attraction for the wider 
Enterprise Zone .

10. Prudential Borrowing costs may not 
be fully met in earlier years due to 
fluctuations income

An inherent risk of the Enterprise 
Zone project is that substantial 
revenue or income can only be 
achieved later in the project’s life, 
whilst costs are necessarily 
incurred earlier in the project. 

Treasury management will ensure 
that already accrued income is 
used to meet any shortfall that 
may occur. Ultimately any deficit 
will fall to the Council. 

11. An inherent risk with the delivery of a 
project such as the Enterprise Zone is 
the length of time involved, some 25 
years, and the potential for changes 
beyond the control of the Council. 
Such risks include but are not limited 
to changes to

a) changes to regulations 
relating to Enterprise Zones 

b) changes to governance 

Each of these factors could have 
positive or negative impacts and 
while it is not possible to make 
firm predictions covering these 
wide ranging matters it is prudent 
of the Council to include a review 
mechanism which allows for 
changes to project or programme 
delivery and can take account of 
all matters that may have changed 

Page 25



arrangements such as LEPs
c) changes to commercial 

property regulations for 
matters such as energy or 
vacancy 

d) changes to regulations 
covering financial matters for 
either public or private bodies

since the inception of the 
Enterprise Zone. 

The proposal for annual reviews 
by the Council strikes the balance 
between having a level of 
certainty for delivery and a 
prudent approach to risk 
management.

12.  Risk that the Enterprise Zone may 
simply encourage displacement of 
jobs and loss of business rates 
income elsewhere in Blackpool and 
Fylde  to the detriment of income 
available for wider council obligations

Whilst it is not possible to prevent 
local business relocating to third 
party controlled property within 
the Enterprise Zone, the approved 
business rates protocol allows 
control over allocation of the early 
years fiscal incentive which will 
help limit local displacement. As 
new development is enabled on 
land served by new infrastructure 
– landowner controls will also 
enable limitation of displacement.

It is to be anticipated that a 
majority of new investment and 
business location to the Enterprise 
Zone will originate from the local 
area, and the alternative to 
allowing companies onto the 
Enterprise Zone is that to grow 
they may have to relocate out of 
the area. 
Where existing commercial 
premises are vacated by 
companies relocating to the 
Enterprise Zone the maximum 
void rates period assuming the 

Page 26



property is not reoccupied would 
be six months –and such churn is a  
natural occurrence for which 
provision is built in annually  when 
setting budgets.

Marketing will also help to 
broaden the appeal and 
awareness of the site to a broad 
audience of potential investors 
beyond the Fylde Coast.

13. Lack collaboration by Fylde Borough 
Council and Lancashire County 
Council, and  failure of Fylde to 
contribute to the delivery of the 
Enterprise Zone , particularly in terms 
of Planning and Highways approvals 
particularly in relation to 
development of aviation facilities 
within the greenbelt,  and in  release 
of Business rates and S106/S278 
funding 

Fylde Borough Council is currently 
supportive of the Enterprise Zone, 
and whilst allowing Blackpool as 
accountable body to lead on all 
aspects of planning and delivery, 
they have confirmed willingness 
via the Memorandum of 
Understanding to ensure that new 
business rates generated within 
the Fylde sector are made 
available to Blackpool, have 
collaborated in the introduction of 
the rates relief protocol and have 
seconded an officer to assist in 
delivery. The opportunity for Fylde 
to contribute further by way of 
direct financial contribution from 
reserves to acquire surplus land at 
Blackpool Airport remains under 
discussion, and together with 
issues relating to planning, 
highways and the future 
development and operation of the 
airport which is located entirely 
within Fylde, the newly 
constituted Economic Prosperity 
Board joint committee provides a 
forum for resolution of any issues.

Lancashire County Council’s 
involvement revolves primarily 
around their role as Highway 
authority for the Fylde sector – 

Page 27



whilst there have been some 
initial delays resulting from lack of 
resources at the County Council 
these have now been overcome 
and the good working relationship 
should mitigate any such issues in 
future  

14. That control of Marketing and 
Enquiry handling is retained by the 
LEP/Marketing Lancashire and delays 
response  to and handling of enquiries

A dedicated marketing officer has 
been appointed to lead on 
Blackpool Airport and Hillhouse 
Enterprise Zones and an 
appropriate budget identified 
within overall Enterprise Zone 
delivery budget       

  
11.0

11.1

Ethical Considerations

None.

12.0

12.1

13.0

13.1

Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

There is been extensive consultation undertaken both internally with Council staff 
across directorates, with Council staff  

Background papers:

None. 

14.0 Key decision information:

14.1 Is this a key decision? Yes 

14.2 If so, Forward Plan reference number:                                                                     tbc 3/2018

14.3 If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days? No

14.4 If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

15.0 Call-in information:

15.1 Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to  No

Page 28



be exempt from the call-in process? 

15.2 If yes, please give reason:

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE

16.0 Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):

Date informed: 8 June 2018 Date approved:      

17.0 Declarations of interest (if applicable):

17.1      

18.0 Executive decision:

18.1      

18.2 Date of Decision:   

19.0 Reason(s) for decision:

19.1 Date Decision published:
     

20.0 Executive Members in attendance:  

20.1      

21.0 Call-in:  

21.1      

22.0 Notes:  

22.1

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2b

BLACKPOOL AIRPORT ENTERPRISE ZONE MARKETING STRATEGY

OVERVIEW 

1. Submission of the Delivery plan to MHCLG is to be accompanied by a brief marketing strategy 
proposal identifying how the Enterprise Zone is to be promoted. 

2. Marketing and promotional activity for the Enterprise Zone will be undertaken by the 
Accountable body, Blackpool Council, working in partnership with Marketing Lancashire, who on 
behalf of Lancashire LEP will be undertaking international marketing of Lancashire’s four 
Enterprise Zones under the Lancashire Advanced Manufacturing and Energy Cluster (LAMEC) 
branding, which encompasses Blackpool’s sister EZ at Hillhouse Technology EZ and the two 
British Aerospace /Lancashire County EZ’s at Samlesbury and Warton.

3. LAMEC branding and it’s common logo style will be adopted for the Blackpool Airport Enterprise 
Zone – utilising a tangerine accent colour for all marketing and promotional material to maintain 
a common thread in promoting opportunities to a predominantly international audience where 
there would likely be little recognition for any of the four locations –although Blackpool would 
have a slightly greater international resonance given its association with its international tourism 
offer.

4. All international marketing and promotion, including attendance at international events such as 
MIPIM, Farnborough and Paris Airshow’s will be undertaken under the LAMEC banner as part of 
the Invest in Lancashire initiative run by Marketing Lancashire working in close collaboration 
with the Department of International Trade (DIT).

5. LAMEC activity will encompass the overarching host LAMEC web site, providing extensive 
background on the broader Lancashire /North West England offer, as well as providing direct 
links to individual sites for the four individual Enterprise Zones, and a centralised enquiry 
receiving service. 

6. Marketing Lancashire will employ an international practice of commercial property agents 
(awaiting appointment) to assist in overseas promotion of the locations, to secure and negotiate 
occupier leads.

7. Marketing Lancashire will also work closely with Lancashire County Council to respond to Inward 
Investment enquiries presented via DIT and UK embassy staff overseas, articulating the 
Lancashire offer and directing enquiries to the most suitable of the four EZ locations.

8. The bulk of the marketing activity will be managed at a local level within the Blackpool Council 
Growth and Prosperity Team, with a dedicated marketing officer working to support the 
Marketing of Blackpool Airport and Hillhouse Enterprise Zones and providing the day to day 
liaison with Marketing Lancashire.

9. A critical early task is taking the commercial proposition and refining the EZ offer to suit target 
sectors and occupiers, creating a set of unique selling propositions around which the marketing 
strategy will be further developed (recognising that the initial offer in terms of accommodation 
choice is limited).  

10. Building on existing activities the marketing strategy will:

 set out clear marketing objectives linked to target outcomes

 define key messages and benefits to target occupiers with particular emphasis on bottom 
line cost and profitability advantages for locating at Blackpool Airport EZ

Page 83



 establish the appropriate marketing channels, mechanisms and materials (web site, 
brochures, direct marketing, events and networks etc.) which will be utilised to generate 
leads and enquiries.

11. It is accepted that as part of this process, Blackpool Council and key stakeholders will need to 
determine their specific roles in marketing and communications, particularly the relationship 
between place marketing at a local authority/LEP level and interaction/engagement with 
Department for International Trade and other strategic marketing partners - including retained 
commercial agents and intermediaries such as sector/employer organisations and potential 
ambassadors for the EZ. 

PROPOSED EZ MARKETING PROGRAMME 

12. This action relates to the delivery of the agreed marketing and communications plan, recognising 
that existing arrangements with Blackpool Council handling enquiries will remain in place.  Key 
actions (that require further in depth strategic planning) will include:

13. Media Relations 
 Identifying topical and tactical opportunities for the local press, regional business media and 

national property press to promote good news stories within the EZ including planning 
milestones and key developments within the site. Individual case studies and feature articles 
will also be placed where appropriate, and where the relevant opportunities arise, in target 
sector journals and publications communicating good news stories from occupiers on the 
site e.g. industry awards, expansion plans, new facilities, job creation etc.

 Trade media publications will be key in delivering a targeted messages relating to the needs 
and requirements of each specific industry and helping to identify and target priority key 
audiences. Using agreed key messages, these will be tailored to suit each specific audience.

 Protocol will be agreed between brands and marketing facilities for PR related activities to 
ensure no duplication or contradiction occurs and messages are clear and defined from all 
departments. 

 Developing stock phrases and stakeholder soundbites to be used across all marketing 
literature and platforms.

 A comprehensive resource library for each target sector would be highly beneficial to help 
identify business leads in specific industries that may require new sites, locations or design & 
build opportunities. 

14. Branding 

 Implementing the LAMEC and MHCLG Enterprise Zone branding maintaining a cohesive, 
strong brand across all literature.

 All local marketing will be co-ordinated and provide a complement to the national and 
international branding and messages of the Department for International Trade and 
Marketing Lancashire.

Page 84



15. Investment Market Research 

 Marketing research has been commissioned from Mickledore into the business perceptions 
of Blackpool as a place to invest, the current investment offer, perceived barriers to 
investment and identification of priorities and recommendations for the development of an 
in depth marketing strategy for the Enterprise Zones and supporting regional development. 
Mickledore are due to present their full findings and recommendations in June 2018 which 
will be used to shape the more detailed marketing strategy.

16. Photography & Audio Visual Media Library 

 Commissioning photography to portray a high quality and professional image for the zone 
and exploring the opportunities surrounding videos, time-lapse footage and aerial footage of 
the site. A comprehensive library of visual aids will be built and maintained to use across 
multi-media platforms over the lifespan of the development. 

 Where opportunities arise, photocall opportunities will be arranged for the local media on 
site to promote key development stages of the site for example steelwork being erected on 
new development plots, ground breaking ceremonies, new occupiers on site, occupier news, 
open days, property agent networking events and launches etc.

17. New EZ Website (blackpoolez.com)

 A new website went live on 11th May 2018, with incremental upgrades in the process of 
being added. The new website is fully branded with the LAMEC theme and will reinforce the 
strength of the brand throughout the site.

 Development plans for the website will be to position it as the central hub for all information 
relating to the EZ. It is proposed that the website will host an owner/occupier directory on 
the site and will have an interactive, property search and easy to use visual map of all 
property and land availability, linked to downloadable brochures, EZ information and joint 
agency details where necessary. Enquiry contact points and a dedicated freephone 
telephone number will be easily found and accessed throughout the site, enabling quick 
replies to customer enquiries. 

 The website will be updated regularly through a live news feed and links to a dedicated EZ 
Twitter account content and Linked IN Company web page, to ensure updated dynamic 
content which will help to push up the website through the Google search ranks and 
improve the EZ’s SEO ratings. 

 The website will also provide links to LAMEC and DIT and other supporting partner websites. 

18. Social Media 

 Utilising social media platforms will enable a daily, informal, news feed and provide an 
invaluable way to connect, chat and communicate developments with various EZ 
stakeholders including the general public, business leaders and key business influencers, the 
commercial property network and various networking groups. Each account created will be 
fully branded and in line with the LAMEC and Enterprise Zone brands.  

Page 85



 Each platform has its own individual merits and will be considered in more depth, for 
example: 

o Twitter encourages open dialogue and small digestible newsbytes
o LinkedIn provides a platform that is tailored to making professional connections
o Facebook is a platform that can work as an extension of a public consultation and is a vehicle 

for people to voice opinions, ideas and promote feedback from the general public. 

19. 3rd party property forums 

 Where appropriate and after consideration of costs, other third party forums, property 
databases and blog posts will be considered to add value to the promotion of the EZs for 
example Zoopla Pro, Rightmove Commercial, Costar, Novaloca and EGi. However, joint 
commercial property agents will already advertise their properties on several of these third 
party websites and it will be the EZ marketing officer’s job to make sure the marketing 
particulars are in line with the LAMEC brands and have all the correct financial benefits 
information and contact details included.

20. Field Study of the Enterprise Zone & Database of Occupiers 

 Surveying the Blackpool EZ site, identifying existing occupiers and creating a database of 
owner/occupiers. This will be updated regularly and will be used to build relationships with 
the EZ existing users and providing an open dialogue and opportunities to disseminate 
future EZ marketing literature such as e-newsletters or project updates. Once implemented 
this can be managed through liaison with the appointed third party estate management 
team for Blackpool Enterprise Zone. 

21. Survey of Current Vacancies 

 Similarly to identifying existing occupiers, a full survey of the site would be undertaken to 
identify property voids and land availability within the site, identify commercial property 
agents marketing each empty unit, and feed this information back through the website. This 
will become a central point of reference for all availability for property and land within the 
site. 

22. Evolutive CRM – Enquiry Database Management 

 Developing a comprehensive, regularly updated enquiry database, exploring existing leads 
and tracking live property requirements, will be key to the future development of the EZ 
sites. This will be done by utilising fully the existing Evolutive CRM system which will feed the 
EZ property database through to the new website so that enquirers can access the 
information, download the brochures and access agent’s contact details to arrange viewings 
etc. 

23. Appointment of national /local joint commercial property agents 

 Commercial property agencies will be appointed to market all vacant space and available 
plots of land to the local, regional, national and international markets.  The joint agents and 
other key development partners will help to identify potential owner/occupiers and to 
speed the development of the zone/make available design and build packages.

Page 86



24. Creative Literature and promotional materials 

 All promotional literature will be made as flexible as possible so that it can be used across 
multi-media platforms. All literature and promotional material will include all the relevant 
branding and key messages. Promotional literature could include: 

 Print brochures, i-brochures, e-newsletters and bulletins, posters, fact sheets for Enhanced 
Capital Allowances and Business Rates Relief, exhibition banners and portable roller stands 
etc. 

 One page fact sheets providing information on Business Rates Relief and Enhanced Capital 
Allowances would be accessible as downloadable documents from the website for public 
consumption and can also be used as direct marketing information and supporting literature 
at conferences, events and exhibitions. 

 I-brochures and infographic-led marketing material would be used to communicate and 
promote the wider benefits surrounding the Enterprise Zone e.g. investment in housing and 
infrastructure, creation of new highways to increase accessibility to the site, investment in 
education, creation of new, landscaped public spaces, i.e. complex infrastructure 
development presented visually and simply.

 Explore PR opportunities through case studies and human interest stories with existing 
businesses on site to promote the wider benefits of conducting business from this location. 
This could be part of a changing, flexible, designed marketing tool that can be adapted to 
suit different sectors. 

25. Marketing Boards 

 Marketing boards to stand at key routes, the entrance to the site and at other strategic 
points have already been commissioned and are awaiting approval. The boards should be 
clearly branded and include the website address and a telephone number for all enquiries. 
They will also carry Council branding logos of any joint agent appointed on the marketing of 
the site. Planning approval for the boards has been granted and they will be in situ from late 
June 2018. 

 Further down the line, consideration could be given to internal signage i.e. ‘way finder’ signs 
within the zone to direct interested parties to new developments and areas of interest. 

26. Direct Marketing 

 The internal EZ enquiry database would be used to contact matched applicants with new 
property and land availability. Direct marketing i-brochures, marketing particulars and e-
flyers would also be issued to the commercial property agent network both regionally and 
nationally, both internally and through joint commercial property agent partnerships.

 To target specific sectors or postcodes, third parties such as mailing houses would be 
approached to buy in targeted lists based on sector, postcode, number of employees, 
turnover etc depending on criteria of the activity planned.  

Page 87



27. Advertising 

 Advertising would be considered on a case to case basis. It can be costly with not much value 
added return on investment and each opportunity would be considered on its own merits. 
We will give consideration to other local council initiatives e.g. Illuminations, conference & 
business tourism initiatives and the local Blackpool ambassador programme, where a 
business audience could be targeted. 

28. Sponsorship Opportunities 

 Sponsorship opportunities will be considered on a case by case basis as events arise, as with 
advertising, these opportunities can be costly with little return. Events to consider may 
include regional business delegation or sponsorship of a conference, tradeshow or event 
within a priority target industry. The suitability and relevance of the audience will be taken 
into consideration alongside overall exposure of the brand and against the cost of the 
activity. 

29. Aero.com URL 

 The Aero.com is a domain name exclusively reserved for the aviation industry. The url has 
been purchase on an initial 12 month contract to help promote the Blackpool Airport 
Enterprise Zone within the aviation sectors and to exploit any database information and 
existing relationships within the industry in order to generate more business leads for the 
airport site. 

30. Connections with Local Educational Facilities 

 Local marketing would focus on relationship building with Blackpool & Fylde College, 
specifically with Lancashire Energy HQ (on the Enterprise Zone) and other local educational 
institutions to build a catalogue of case studies to use to promote the site and the local 
investment in a future skilled workforce. This will in turn help to generate interest in the 
Fylde Coast as a place to do business in the future due to a skilled, highly trained, local 
workforce. 

31. Business to Business Networking 

 Establish contacts with specialist business developers and relocations experts to generate 
leads for expansion and relocations requirements to the Fylde coast.

 Identify and explore business lead opportunities through networking with CIPR (Chartered 
Institute of Public Relations) and other local marketing and business networking events such 
as Blackpool Business Leadership Group and Wyred Up and established business groups such 
as the Chamber of Commerce.

 Opportunities surrounding the Business Tourism and the Blackpool Business Ambassador 
Programme run by Visit Blackpool at Blackpool Council will also be explored. 

Page 88



32. Conclusion 

All the activities discussed in the above marketing strategy will be subject to further scrutiny 
depending on the relevance of each activity, perceived added value and the cost of each activity 
considered against budgetary restraints.

Each activity delivered will aim to:
 promote the Enterprise Zones and support the Economic Prosperity Board
 raise the profile and awareness of the economic opportunities at the Enterprise Zones 
 attract new and sustainable long terms business to the Fylde coats 
 support new development and diversity of businesses on the Fylde coast 
 advance vocational training and skills for the future local workforce

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Notice of: EXECUTIVE
Relevant Officer: Andrew Foot, Head of Housing 

Relevant Cabinet Member: Councillor Mrs Christine Wright, Cabinet Member for 

Housing

Date of Meeting: 18 June 2018

COUNCIL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT ON THE FORMER HOYLE HOUSE 
SITE

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 To seek approval for the Council to develop housing on the former Hoyle House site, 
including 7 specialist supported housing flats for residents with learning disabilities 
and a further 11 general needs homes for rent.  Grant funding awarded by the 
Department of Health of £645,000 will be used to fund the supported housing units, 
with further grant funding sought from Homes England to assist with the 
development of the remaining homes.
  

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1

2.2

2.3

That delegated authority is granted to the Head of Legal to enter into a design and 
build construction contract to build the new homes at the site of the former Hoyle 
House and any other legal documentation required for the implementation of the 
scheme.

That the Director of Strategy be authorized to bid for grant funding to Homes 
England and the Head of Legal Services has delegated authority to enter into a 
funding agreement with Homes England to develop 11no. general needs homes for 
affordable rent as part of the development on the Hoyle House site. 

That a management agreement is drawn up between the Council and Blackpool 
Coastal Housing Limited for the management of the new properties and that the 
Head of Legal has delegated authority to enter into that agreement on behalf of the 
Council.

Page 97

Agenda Item 3



3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1 To deliver specialist new homes with assistive technology for residents with learning 
disabilities, and encourage greater independence, in accordance with the terms of 
funding awarded by the Department of Health. The rest of the site will be used to 
meet local needs for affordable family homes for rent.

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council?

No

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget?

Yes

3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:

To pass on the Department of Health funding to Progress Housing Group to enable them 
to complete the housing development.

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 The relevant Council priority is:  “Communities: Creating stronger communities and 
increasing resilience”

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

Background Information

The Council was successful in bidding for capital funding to deliver new independent 
accommodation for people with learning disabilities. £645,000 has been secured from 
the Department of Health’s Housing and Technology Fund to build flats with assistive 
technology and associated communal accommodation. The bid reflected emerging 
local needs, and an expectation that building flats with assistive technology would 
reduce the care costs that the local authority would need to meet.   

The Council intended to work with Progress Housing Group because of their 
background in developing housing with support for residents with learning disabilities. 
After looking at a number of alternatives it was agreed to build the new homes on the 
site of the former Hoyle House, and planning approval was obtained for these flats 
and further general needs affordable homes in December 2017. But it has taken 
longer than expected to agree the terms of the land sale and funding agreement with 
Progress, delaying the scheme starting on site.

The Department of Health has confirmed that the funding is still available, but that 
the specialist accommodation for people with learning disabilities must be completed 

Page 98



5.4

5.5

5.6

by the end of March 2019. It is proposed that to ensure that the scheme moves 
forward quickly the Council develops the new homes itself rather than passing on the 
funding and selling the land to Progress Housing Group. 

As with other Council homes, the new accommodation will be managed by Blackpool 
Coastal Housing. While BCH have not previously managed specialist homes for people 
with learning disabilities, they will work closely with the Council’s LD Team and 
benefit from the experience of managing the Hoyle at Mansfield Road facility that has 
recently been redesigned for residents with learning disabilities.  

The planning approval for the Hoyle House site granted in December 2017 also 
includes 11 no. general needs affordable homes for rent on the remainder of the site. 
It is proposed that the Council bids to Homes England for new capital funding to 
develop these homes as Council properties. Homes England has indicated that funding 
is likely to be available at similar rates to the funding currently being used to develop 
the last new homes at Queens Park.

Following approval of this report, work will begin immediately to engage a building 
contractor to commence the housing development, with priority given to completing 
the supported housing units. At the same time, the Council will seek to source capital 
grant funding from Homes England to help finance the development of the general 
needs accommodation.

5.7 Is the Corporate Delivery Unit aware of this report?

The Corporate Delivery Unit has no comments to raise.

Yes

5.8 Does the information submitted include any exempt information?                                         No

5.9 List of Appendices:

None.

6.0 Legal considerations:

6.1

6.2

It is not considered that the Council has any legal obligations to Progress Housing 
Group to continue with the negotiation of the sale of the land and provision of 
funding to them, but agreement will be sought to reimburse Progress for the costs 
that they have already expended in gaining planning approval for the scheme and 
tendering the building works.

Progress Housing is a body governed by public law and as such there is a legal duty to 
ensure that value for money is achieved.  Progress has undertaken a procurement 
process and the winning tender was submitted by R.P. Tyson Limited in respect of the 

Page 99



Hoyle House development.   

Progress Housing’s policies require that they tender and undertake tender evaluation 
consistently, without bias and objectively. Tenders are evaluated against a pre-
determined set of criteria stated in the original tender.  The award criteria vary 
depending on the type of contract. It may consist of:
 Low total cost
 Quality
 Adherence to policies and procedures
 Communication
 Added social value

An evaluation team of stakeholders, which may contain tenants, examine each 
tender and make recommendations as to which tender is the most economically 
advantageous.

Taking this into account it is the Council’s intention to honour Progress Housing’s 
tendering process and to undertake the construction works with R.P. Tyson Limited. 

7.0 Human Resources considerations:

7.1 The scheme will be delivered within existing Council and Blackpool Coastal Housing 
staff capacity, with project management by the development team at Blackpool 
Housing Company. The existing external Employer’s Agent responsible for contract 
management and quantity surveying will be used by the Council to maintain 
continuity in the on-going procurement and contract management process.

8.0 Equalities considerations:

8.1 None

9.0 Financial considerations:

9.1 Grant funding awarded by the Department of Health of £645,000 will meet most of 
the development costs for the supported housing units.  The Council will apply for 
capital grant funding from Homes England to contribute towards the cost of 
developing the general needs housing units, with an expectation that around 
£330,000 in grant funding will be made available.  The total cost of constructing the 
whole scheme is expected to be just under £2 million, plus the Council’s design and 
project management costs. An allowance has been made in the development budget 
to make a further capital contribution to the Council’s General Fund of £150,000 as 
was anticipated from the sale of the land to Progress Housing Group. The total 
development cost of around £2.350 million will be offset by a total of £0.975 million.

Page 100



9.2

9.3

The remaining development costs of £1.375 million that are not grant funded will be 
met from the Council’s Housing Revenue Account where there is sufficient borrowing 
capacity to meet the costs of this development alongside other commitments. 

The rents for the learning disabilities units will be set at a level that can be funded 
through Housing Benefit, and care costs will be met from existing care budgets. By 
building in assistive technology, tenants will be able to lead more independent lives 
and require less care input than if they were not in specially designed 
accommodation. The rents for the general needs homes will be set at Affordable 
Rent levels which are 80% of market rents as required by Homes England. This will 
pay for on-going management and maintenance and pay off the borrowing in around 
30 years. 

10.0 Risk management considerations:

10.1 The intervention of the Council in directly constructing these homes seeks to 
minimise the risk of losing Department of Health grant and failing to build the 
housing that residents need. But this takes on the usual risks of undertaking new 
construction. The risk of increased costs will be minimised by using the project 
management team and arrangements used successfully at Queens Park, by using a 
design and build contract and seeking to make use of existing tender documents and 
an existing tender price. Timescales will be managed by negotiating to get on site by 
August 2018, using the existing planning approval.

11.0 Ethical considerations:

11.1 Progress Housing Group had expected to develop the scheme. The Council will 
reimburse Progress Housing Group for the costs incurred to date in taking the 
scheme to this stage.

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

12.1

12.2

12.3

The development is a result of the identification of needs for specialist housing for 
people with learning disabilities or autism by Adult Services Commissioning Team, 
working with the Housing Strategy team to develop a funding bid. The usual 
consultation processes were followed prior to the bid being submitted.

A public consultation was held at the local community centre as part of the Planning 
process, allowing neighbouring residents an opportunity to ask further questions.  
There were no objections to the proposal received. 

The proposal for the Council to take on the development has been brought forward 
following advice from the Council’s Legal, Procurement, and Capital Projects teams.

Page 101



13.0 Background papers:

13.1 None.

14.0 Key decision information:

14.1 Is this a key decision? Yes

14.2 If so, Forward Plan reference number: Not Included on 
the Forward 
Plan

14.3 If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days?  No

14.4 If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

 
15.0 Call-in information:

15.1 Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to 
be exempt from the call-in process? No

15.2 If yes, please give reason:

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE

16.0 Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):

Date informed: 8 June 2018 Date approved:      8 June 2018 

17.0 Declarations of interest (if applicable):

17.1

18.0 Executive decision:

18.1

18.2 Date of Decision:   

Page 102



19.0 Reason(s) for decision:

19.1 Date Decision published:

20.0 Executive Members in attendance:  

20.1

21.0 Call-in:  

21.1      

22.0 Notes:  

22.1

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer: Alan Cavill, Director of Communications and Regeneration

Relevant Cabinet Member Councillor Simon Blackburn,  Leader of the Council
Date of Meeting 18 June 2018

CONSIDERATION OF A LEASE FOR THE MUSEUM PROJECT

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 To agree a Lease at the Palatine Building Promenade Blackpool.

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1

2.2

2.3

 To agree in principle to locate the Blackpool Museum in the Palatine Buildings.

To authorise the Director of Communications and Regeneration to enter/continue 
negotiations.

 To receive a further report on the next steps.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1 The discussions on the Agreement for Lease and Lease are at a delicate stage and a 
number of modifications to the contractual documentation have been requested. In 
addition the Landlord’s obligation on delivery of the handover specification to the 
Council is not agreed and this will lead to cost changes. Approval of a preferred 
option will strengthen the Council’s position in being able to negotiate with the 
landlord. 

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council?

Yes

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget?

No

Page 105

Agenda Item 4



3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:

Alternative property options were considered by the Museum team and these were 
discounted on suitability grounds in favour of the former Palatine Building.

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 The relevant Council priorities are: “The economy: Maximising growth and 
opportunity across Blackpool” and “Communities: Creating stronger communities 
and increasing resilience”

5.0

5.1

Background Information

Steps up to date. 

In July 2017 Blackpool Council withdrew its Round Two Heritage Lottery bid to 
develop a Museum in the Winter Gardens. However it remained committed to its 
ambition to develop a Museum, with the ability to deliver on the key social and 
economic outcomes of the Winer Gardens scheme, at a significantly reduced capital 
cost. Consequently an options appraisal was undertaken to assess and establish the 
best value option within these parameters. 

The four options were:
1. Baseline – do nothing. Blackpool would not have a Museum and all of the 
collections would remain in storage around the town. 
2. The preferred option as described and as presented. This would see the creation 
of a nationally significant Museum celebrating Blackpool’s role as a resort but more 
importantly as a centre of popular culture and entertainment. 
3. A more ambitious, larger option which includes the Museum, as described, in the 
Pavilion and Horseshoe areas of the Winter Gardens. 
4. A much smaller Museum which would see space within the library being used. The 
Museum would be much more local in focus and reach. The displays would be small 
and concentrate on local history. It would attract a very local audience.    

The economic case demonstrated that option 2 represented the greatest value for 
money for the public sector investment required.

Page 106



Four sites were explored to establish viability and value for money. Based on this, 
seven potential sites were identified from which a shortlist of three town centre 
properties were identified. These were:

 Stanley Buildings (reuse of a locally listed building)
 King Street Carpark (new build)
 Basement of the British Home Stores (BHS) building (reuse of a non-historic 

building).

At a later stage the Palatine Building was considered and found to be more suitable. 
The location of the site and the potential for the Project to be simplified, effectively 
to a fit-out, within a redeveloped core.  Consequently, the four sites were presented 
to the Project Board and the Palatine building was selected as the preferred option. 
The revised scheme was developed within the new location, whilst retaining the 
original vision and encompassing relevant work from the Winter Gardens Pavilion 
scheme.

5.2 The Palatine Building is to undergo substantial work and re-modelling to convert into 
a 5 star hotel and Spa and Proposed to open in the summer of 2019, the Museum is 
proposing to take a Lease within the premises.

5.3 The Musuem is expected to receive handover of the premises in 2019 and will then 
commence its fit out, opening expected to be in the Summer of 2020.

5.4 The Musuem entrance is expected to be from Bank Hey Street with a ground floor 
entrance and first floor space containing permanent and temp displays and learning 
areas.

5.5 The total scheme fit out is outlined in the attached Appendix 4a and outlines that the 
majority of the funding will come from external sources and a number of bids have 
been submitted and awaiting a result.

5.7 Is the Corporate Delivery Unit aware of this report?

The Corporate Delivery Unit has been involved in the report and their 
comments are included in the report.

Yes

5.6 Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

The detailed scheme budget is still commercially sensitive and is 
included in the exempt Appendix 4a.

Yes

Page 107



5.7 List of Appendices:

Appendix 4a–  Detailed Scheme Budget (exempt from publication) 

6.0 Legal considerations:

6.1 The Agreement for Lease and Lease will be agreed by Legal Services, it is expected 
the Museum will be operated by a Limited company who will be required to enter 
into a formal lease with the Council.

7.0 Human Resources considerations:

7.1 The Museum will be operated by a Limited Company, it is expected the staff would 
be employed by the Company, TUPE considerations may arise as a result.

8.0 Equalities considerations:

8.1 None.

9.0 Financial considerations:

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

The value for money appraisal lead to the selection of the Palatine building, any 
substantial change in costs would prompt a re-consideration of the location.

The final figures for the rent and service charge have not been agreed, although it is 
known the Council would be required to pay a rent and a service charge.

The majority funding for the scheme is expected from external sources, refer to 
Appendix 4a.

Commencing rent remains subject to negotiation and officers will ensure that this 
represents value for money and will be at a market rate. 

10.0 Risk management considerations:

10.1

10.2

Should all the funding in Appendix 4a not come forward the scheme may not be able 
to proceed and therefore the agreement for lease would be conditional on all the 
funding being confirmed in full. 

The sub-lease to a new Limited company will not extinguish the Council’s liabilities on 
the lease.

Page 108



11.0 Ethical considerations:

11.1 None.

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

12.1 Internally with the Growth and  Prosperity Board, Finance, Legal, Museum Project 
Board

13.0 Background papers:

13.1 None.

14.0 Key decision information:

14.1 Is this a key decision? Yes

14.2 If so, Forward Plan reference number: 19/2018

14.3 If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days? No

14.4 If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

 
15.0 Call-in information:

15.1 Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to 
be exempt from the call-in process? No

15.2 If yes, please give reason:

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE

16.0 Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):

Date informed: 8 June 2018 Date approved:      

17.0 Declarations of interest (if applicable):

Page 109



17.1      

18.0 Executive decision:

18.1

18.2 Date of Decision:   

     

19.0 Reason(s) for decision:

     

19.1 Date Decision published:

     

20.0 Executive Members in attendance:  

20.1      

21.0 Call-in:  

21.1      

22.0 Notes:  

22.1      

Page 110



Report to: EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer: Steve Thompson, Director of Resources

Relevant Cabinet Member: Councillor Simon Blackburn, Leader of the Council

Date of Meeting: 18 June 2018

PROVISIONAL OUTTURN 2017/2018

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 The report of the Director of Resources on the Provisional Revenue Outturn for 
2017/2018 compared with the approved budget and the capital expenditure in the 
year ended 31st March 2018 with sources of funding.

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

To approve the provisional revenue outturn for 2017/2018 and in so doing to note 
that the figures are subject to external audit and final accounting adjustments (ref. 
paragraph 2.1).
  
To approve the recommendations regarding the treatment of specific service under / 
overspends as outlined (ref. paragraph 3.2).

To approve the provisional capital outturn for 2017/2018 and methods of scheme 
funding as outlined (ref. paragraphs 4.2 and 4.5).

To note the Prudential Indicator (ref. paragraph 4.3).

To note the levels of the earmarked reserves including those for the Housing 
Revenue Account and maintained schools (ref. paragraphs 6.1, 6.3 and 6.4).

To approve the recommendation that £1.4m is taken from the Treasury Management 
Prudential Borrowing Reserve and £0.6m from the Collection Fund Deficit Reserve 
(Council Tax and NNDR) and added to General Fund Working Balances, increasing 
them to £6,034,000 for the start of the 2018/19 financial year (ref. paragraph 7.2).

Page 113

Agenda Item 5



3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

3.1 To bring the Provisional Revenue and Capital outturn figures to Members’ attention 
at the earliest opportunity in accordance with good financial practice and to seek 
approval of the treatment of carry forward under/overspendings as outlined in 
paragraph 3.2 of the report, so that budget managers can then plan accordingly.

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council?

No

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget?

Yes

3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:

None, the report is a position statement as at 31st March 2018.

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 The relevant Council priority is: “The economy: Maximising growth and opportunity 
across Blackpool”.

5.0 Background Information

5.1 The report of the Director of Resources attached at Appendix 1 to this report outlines 
the Provisional Revenue Outturn for 2017/2018 compared with the approved budget 
and the capital expenditure in the year ended 31st March 2018 with sources of 
funding.

5.2 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No

5.3 List of Appendices:

Appendix 5a  – Report of the Director of Resources
Appendix 5b – Outturn Summary
Appendix 5c- Chief Executive Summary
Appendix 5d - Governance and Partnership Services Summary
Appendix 5e - Ward Budgets Summary
Appendix 5f– Resources Summary
Appendix 5g – Places Summary
Appendix 5h - Community and Environmental Services Summary
Appendix 5i - Adult Services Summary
Appendix 5j - Children’s Services Summary
Appendix 5k - Public Health Summary

Page 114



Appendix 5l - Budgets Outside the Cash Limit Summary
Appendix 5m - Capital Outturn Summary 

6.0 Legal considerations:

6.1 None.

7.0 Human Resources considerations:

7.1 None.

8.0 Equalities considerations:

8.1 None.

9.0 Financial considerations:

9.1 As outlined in the report.

10.0 Risk management considerations:

10.1 Impact of financial performance on Council reserves and balances. 

11.0 Ethical considerations:

11.1 None.

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

12.1 None.

13.0 Background papers:

13.1 None.

14.0 Key decision information:

14.1 Is this a key decision? Yes

14.2 If so, Forward Plan reference number:      15/2018

14.3 If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days? No

14.4 If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

Page 115



 
15.0 Call-in information:

15.1 Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to 
be exempt from the call-in process? No

15.2 If yes, please give reason:

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE

16.0 Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):

Date informed: 8 June 2018     Date approved:

17.0 Declarations of interest (if applicable):

17.1

18.0 Executive decision:

18.1

18.2 Date of Decision:   

19.0 Reason(s) for decision:

19.1 Date Decision published:

20.0 Executive Members present:  

20.1

Page 116



21.0 Call-in:  

21.1

22.0 Notes:  

22.1

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



BLACKPOOL COUNCIL

REPORT

of the

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

to the

EXECUTIVE

on

18 JUNE 2018

PROVISIONAL OUTTURN 2017/2018

1. Introduction

1.1 The purposes of this report are to show i) a comparison of General Fund 
Revenue Account expenditure in the year ended 31st March 2018 with the 
approved budget and ii) a statement of Capital Expenditure in the year ended 
31st March 2018 with sources of funding. The figures are provisional in that 
they are subject to external audit and any final accounting adjustments. The 
final figures will be incorporated within the Statement of Accounts for 
2017/2018, which is the subject of a separate report to the Audit Committee 
on 30th July 2018 in order to comply with the statutory deadline required by 
the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.

2. Provisional Revenue Outturn 2017/2018

2.1 The Provisional Revenue Outturn for 2017/2018 (before allowing for changes 
to working balances) is £127,898,000 compared with the approved budget of 
£125,766,000 – a net increase of £2,132,000.  The summary figures are shown 
at Appendix 5b.    

2.2 The year-end variance position for each directorate is set out in Appendices 5c 
to 5l and is summarised as follows:-

Page 119



Directorate 2017/2018
Variance

£000

Reference 
Appendix

Chief Executive (4) 2a

Governance and Partnership Services 152 2b

Ward Budgets (312) 2c

Resources (119) 2d

Places 201 2e

Community and Environmental Services (1) 2f

Adult Services (660) 2g

Children’s Services 3,018 2h

Public Health - 2i

Total 2,275

2.3 The main reasons for this net service overspend / (underspends) are:-

Service Reasons £000
Children’s Services Children’s Social Care overspent by £5,863k, mainly due to a 

significant increase in the Looked After Children (LAC) numbers 
since budgets were set with a peak of 549 at the end of May 
2017. Since then numbers had been reducing, however demand 
and complexity of cases increased during the latter half of the 
financial year and by the end of March 2018 LAC numbers had 
reached 529. Given these pressures in Children’s Social Care 
would impact adversely on the Council’s key financial 
performance an in-year solution was approved by the Executive 
on 5th February 2018 to provide time for the Director of 
Children’s Services’ plans to gain traction. Following a review of 
reserves, the Executive approved the full use of the Basic Needs 
Funding reserve to reduce the social care overspend to £3,358k. 
A net shortfall of £167k on the Education Services Grant due to 
the loss of funding arising from the grant ceasing from 
September 2017 and a small overspend in the Education 
division resulted in total pressures of £3,543k for the financial 
year. These overspends were partially offset by staffing and 
supplies and services underspends in the Early Help and 
Business Support & Resources divisions of £414k and £112k 
respectively.

3,018

Page 120



Places The Places Directorate overspend of £201k largely comprises 
Prudential borrowing costs of £62k relating to the Central 
Leisure Quarter development coupled with income shortfalls of 
£95k in Print Services and £30k in Illuminations.   Other small 
under and overspends increased this to the £201k reported.

201

Governance and 
Partnership Services

Governance and Partnership Services overspent mainly due to a 
£171k shortfall in income within Customer Care and Life Events.  
This was offset by small surpluses in Democratic Governance 
and Corporate Legal Services due to income exceeding budget.

152

Community and 
Environmental Services

The Community and Environmental Services budget has 
basically broken even for 17/18 with offsetting under and 
overspends across its constituent services.  Business Services 
reported an overspend of £143k due to budgeted savings being 
delivered in other service areas, whilst Leisure and Catering 
faced a pressure of £88k on income targets.
These pressures were offset by additional scheme income in 
Highways and Traffic Management Services of £100k and Street 
Cleansing and Waste of £65k plus small underspends in other 
service areas resulting from vacancy savings and additional 
income generation.

(1)

Chief Executive Various slight under and overspends across the constituent 
services resulted in this outturn position.

             (4)

Resources Property Services overspent by £87k due to the current pace of 
property rationalisation, demolition delays to redundant 
properties and pressure from rental income within the Central 
Business District. The other Resources divisions underspent by 
£206k mainly due to staffing vacancies and supplies and 
services savings.

(119)

Ward Budgets Scheme commitments of £312k are being carried forward into 
2018/19.

(312)

Adult Services Adult Commissioning Placements underspent by £409k as a 
result of releasing one-off income and unallocated accruals, 
offset by in-year planned slippage of the Housing Related 
Support savings target.  The remaining underspends were 
mainly due to staffing vacancies.

(660)

Total 2,275

2.4 The financial outturn for budgets ‘outside the cash limit’ is detailed at Appendix 
5l and shows an aggregate overspending of £452,000. The main reasons for   
this are:-

Service Reasons £000

Parking Services An overspend of £690k arose in Parking 
Services, mainly due to “on-street” parking 
schemes not being feasible, a loss of parking 

690

Page 121



spaces, prudential borrowing costs and the 
operation of the free parking scheme during 
December.

Previous Years’ Pension 
Liability/Land 
Charges/Housing 
Benefits/Council Tax and 
NNDR Cost of 
Collection/Corporate 
Subscriptions

Council Tax and NNDR Cost of Collection 
overspend of £43k is due to a reduction in  
costs recovered on Council Tax collection. 
Previous Years’ Pension Liability overspend of 
£48k is due to a reduction in contributions 
from schools due to schools converting to 
Academies.

92

Concessionary Fares Concessionary fares were over budget due to 
an increase in bus and tram patronage which 
has been partly met.

25

Subsidiary Companies This underspend has resulted from a saving on 
Prudential borrowing costs as borrowings on 
historic capital schemes have been repaid.

(94)

Treasury Management Treasury Management has a favourable 
position due to cash flow management.

(105)

New Homes Bonus This underspend is due to the additional 
income resulting from the final NHB 
allocation.

(156)

Total 452

3. Treatment of Revenue Budget Variances

3.1 As part of the year-end process an analysis of budget variances is undertaken 
in order to determine the treatment of under/overspendings on service 
budgets. The conventional Cash Limited Budgeting approach requires that:-

 underspendings are carried forward in full and are then available to 
supplement the following year’s service budget;

 overspendings are similarly carried forward but must as far as possible be 
recovered in the following financial year (where an extended period is 
required, this must be on the basis of a recovery plan with a timetable not 
exceeding 3 years and approved by the Executive); and

 any windfall gains, as determined by the Director of Resources and arising 
from events outside the control of the service, are added to the Council’s 
general working balances.

3.2 However, having considered the Provisional Revenue Outturn 2017/2018 in 
detail and the financial outlook and consulted Corporate Leadership Team 
colleagues, it is recommended that:-

 the underspending of £312,000, in respect of the scheme commitments, 
on Ward Budgets is carried forward to 2018/2019 in full;

 the following under and overspendings are to be written off:

Page 122



Directorate £000
Chief Executive (4)
Governance and Partnership Services 152
Resources (119)
Places 201
Community and Environmental Services (1)
Adult Services (660)
Children’s Services 3,018
Total 2,587

This will allow services to enter the new financial year in a balanced 
position and give directorates a realistic chance of meeting their budget 
savings for what will be the 8th consecutive year of material budget cuts.

4.         Provisional Capital Outturn 2017/2018

4.1. This section sets out the level of expenditure incurred by the Council on its 
2017/2018 Capital Programme. It provides a breakdown of expenditure by 
service in addition to providing a proposal on how the Capital Programme for 
2017/2018 should be financed.

4.2. The total capital expenditure for the year was £40,532,257. This is 
summarised as follows with an analysis of spend by individual scheme 
available at Appendix 5m:-

Directorate £
Place 23,546,353
Community and Environmental Services 8,388,445
Resources 3,983,849
Adult Services 2,538,519
Children’s Services 2,073,397
Governance and Partnership Services 1,694
Total 40,532,257

4.3 CIPFA’s Prudential Code of Practice requires the Council to set a range of 
indicators each year, one of which is to separately account for non-HRA and 
Housing Revenue Account expenditure incurred in the financial year. Total 
capital spend in 2017/2018 of £40,532,257 is split between non-HRA of 
£32,525,925 and Housing Revenue Account of £8,006,332.

4.4    The original Capital Programme for 2017/2018 was set at £23.078m whilst the 
amount actually spent in-year was approaching double this. This is mainly due 
to new approvals given for schemes during the year and the large brought 
forward budget from previous years.

Page 123



4.5      It is recommended that this expenditure is funded from the following sources:-
                                                                                      

Source £
Prudential Borrowing (4,045,176)
Government and Other Grants 22,634,187
Capital Receipts 3,014,947

Other Sources:
    - Revenue 8,644,818
    - School contribution 42,859
    - Modus 5,500,000
    - Job Centre 1,638,426
    - Foxhall Village 1,073,645
    - United Utilities Contribution 263,429
    - Lancashire County Council 1,142,896
    - Blackpool Transport Services 6,893
- Enterprise Zone Growth Fund 615,333

  
Total 40,532,257

The Council has maximised all capital resources available to it during 
2017/2018 and arrangements have been made to ensure that funding for re-
profiled schemes is carried forward into 2018/2019. 

5.        Collection Rates

5.1 Council Tax (CT)

At the end of month 12 the amount collected for Council Tax (excluding Police 
and Fire precepts) was £46.4m and the collection rate was 91.3%.  This 
compares to £43.5m and 90.0% at the same point in 2016/17.  The amount 
collected has actually risen by £2.9m which is mainly due to increases in both 
the Council Tax rate and base combined with the improved collection rate. 

In the light of the reductions in discount and the introduction of the Local 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme the target collection rate is still 97.5% over a 4-
year collection period as approved on 27th January 2017 as part of the setting 
of the Council Tax Base for 2017/18.

The level of Council Tax income is also affected by movements in the actual 
Council Tax Base compared to that used for the purposes of the 2017/2018 
Budget.  The base is affected by the Council Tax Reduction Scheme which is 
effectively applied as a discount and therefore subsequently reduces the tax 
base. Movements in the Council Tax Reduction Scheme impact on the income 
due.

As at 31st March 2018 the level of arrears has increased to £16.8m (compared 
to £15.0m in 2016/2017) and the provision for bad debts has increased to 
£6.5m (compared to £5.7m in 2016/2017). These reflect the current economic 

Page 124



climate and the risks associated with the Council Tax Reduction Scheme.  If 
the actual collection rate is higher than 97.5% then the excess will be available 
to reduce the Council Tax in future years.  If it is lower than 97.5% then an 
increase in Council Tax will be required in future years to cover the shortfall.  
This would be in addition to any changes arising from the actual collection 
rates in previous years.

 
5.2 Council Tax Reduction Scheme (CTRS)

The Council Tax Reduction Scheme was introduced on 1st April 2013.  The 
Scheme ensures that support to pensioners continues at existing levels.  
Working-age claimants are means-tested to establish entitlement and a 
percentage reduction (currently 27.11%) is applied at the end of the 
assessment to establish the level of support provided.  From 1st April 2017 the 
scheme was amended so that certain vulnerable groups would have the 
27.11% reduced to 13.56%.  This has the effect of reducing the amount to be 
collected. 

At the end of month 12 the amount collected (excluding Police and Fire 
precepts) in respect of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and Council Tax for 
those who have to pay CTRS, either for the first time or in addition to a 
proportion of their Council Tax, was £2.31m and the collection rate was 
61.3%.  This compares to £2.53m and 60.6% at the same point in 2016/17.

The underlying rate of collection of Council Tax Reduction Scheme was under 
greater pressure than 2016/17 due to accumulated arrears and limits on the 
amount that could be recovered from Attachment of Benefits

 5.3 National Non-Domestic Rate (NNDR)

Prior to 1st April 2013 Business Rate income was collected by billing authorities 
on behalf of central government and then redistributed among all local 
authorities and police authorities as part of Formula Grant.  From 1st April 
2013 the income relating to Blackpool is shared between central government 
(50%), the Council (49%) and the Fire Authority (1%). Consequential 
adjustments were made to the Formula Grant equivalent.

At the end of month 12 the amount collected for Business Rates was £47.6m 
and the collection rate was 95.6%.  This compares to £50.7m and 93.9% at the 
same point in 2016/17.   The increase of 1.7% compared to the previous year 
equates to £1.2m, though changes in both the Business Rate multiplier and 
base (due to the Revaluation in April 2017 and other movements) have made 
negative contributions of £4.3m, offset by a compensating increase to the 
NDR Top-up amount.  The Council’s share of business rate yield continues at 
49%.

From April 2014 Business Ratepayers have been entitled to elect to pay by 12 
monthly instalments instead of over 10 months. This has allowed businesses 
more time to pay.  However, 873 business rate summonses were issued in the 
12 months to the end of March 2018.

Page 125



The unaudited Business Rate cumulative deficit as at 31st March 2018 is 
£4.157m.  The Council's share of this is £2.037m (49%). 

 
As at 31st March 2018 the level of arrears has increased to £6.2m (compared 
to £6.0m in 2016/2017) and the provision for bad debts has increased to 
£2.5m (compared to £2.3m in 2016/2017). The level of write-offs and the 
provision for bad debts reflect the current economic climate and the volatility 
of these areas and justifies the level of earmarked reserves held by the 
authority. The appeals provision has increased to £10.0m in 2017/2018 
(compared to £7.8m in 2016/2017) and is deemed necessary due to the 
volume of appeals still being submitted to the Valuation Office in respect of 
the 2010 Valuation List and to provide for appeals following the 2017 
Revaluation.  Following the introduction of the Check, Challenge and Appeal 
system by the Valuation Office no appeals have been received and the 
information available nationally is extremely limited.  In the absence of data 
from the 2017 List the amount set aside has been based on the allowance of 
4.77% made to the adjustment to the NNDR Multiplier as this represents the 
government’s view as to the eventual impact of appeals on the 2017 List.

6. Reserves and Provisions

6.1 In accordance with Local Authority Accounting Panel (LAAP) Bulletin No. 99 
the Council’s reserves and provisions are continuously reviewed for relevance, 
appropriateness and materiality. The establishment, use and closure of 
reserves and provisions require the specific authorisation of the Director of 
Resources and auditable records are maintained to that effect.  Members are 
asked to note that the level of earmarked reserves has decreased from 
£37.5m to £36.8m during 2017/2018 with those reserves summarised and 
shown in the table overleaf:-

Page 126



Earmarked Reserves 2017/2018 2016/2017
£000 £000

Collection Fund Deficit Reserve (Council 
Tax and NNDR)

13,459 13,910

Public/Private Partnerships 6,064 7,548
Treasury Management – Prudential 
borrowing

2,251 2,668

Transformation Reserve 425 1,944
Museum Reserve 875 1,252
Insurances 1,100 850
Potential Pay Liabilities 488 284
Other Reserves 12,157 9,045
 
Total Earmarked Reserves 36,819 37,501

6.2 The Strategic Leisure Assets cumulative overspend of £5,429,000 brought 
forward from 2016/2017 is included within earmarked reserves along with the 
2017/2018 in-year overspend of £1,315,000.  It is forecast that the portfolio 
will break-even, in-year, during 2021/2022 when it will then start to repay the 
overspend. This is in line with the Medium Term Financial Plan.

6.3. The year-end balances of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) are £5,870,000 
which is £259,000 less than originally forecast for 2017/2018.

6.4. Maintained schools’ balances (which lie outside the control of the Council) 
decreased by £211,000 in 2017/2018 to £2.1m. A £321,000 reduction was due 
to academy conversions with the remaining maintained schools adding 
£110,000 from their reserves. £25,000 is also held in an earmarked reserve in 
relation to unspent Dedicated Schools Grant.

7. General Fund Working Balances

7.1 The Council’s Revenue Budget for 2017/18 set a target level of General Fund 
working balances of around £6m. It is deemed appropriate to maintain this 
target level of £6m for working balances for the medium term.  To do so 
would require an increase of £1.966m on the current balance of £4.034m.

7.2     A review of earmarked reserves has been undertaken. It is proposed that 
£1.4m is taken from the Treasury Management Prudential Borrowing Reserve 
and £0.6m from the Collection Fund Deficit Reserve (Council Tax & NNDR) and 
added to General Fund Working Balances, increasing them to £6,034,000 for 
the start of the 2018/19 financial year.  The rationale behind utilising these 
two reserves is that the take up of borrowing to lend for business loans has 
been higher than planned in 2017/18 and in-year collection of Council Tax and 
NNDR out performed previous years. Therefore higher levels set aside for 
these reserves can be reduced accordingly with sufficient headroom to 
accommodate any further volatility in Prudential Borrowing and Council Tax 
and NNDR collection over the medium-term.

Page 127



8. Conclusions and Recommendations

8.1 The Provisional Outturn for 2017/2018 shows the financial performance 
culminating with the Council’s General Fund working balances standing at 
£4,034,000. As has been reported it has been a difficult year with Children’s 
Services materially impacting upon the bottom line.

 8.2 As the Council continues to manage the financial constraints placed upon it, 
the measures proposed within this report will reinstate some cushion for 
managing the risks that lie ahead in the next financial year, which the Medium 
Term Financial Sustainability Strategy has highlighted as a very difficult year to 
navigate.

8.3 The Executive is asked to:

 approve the provisional revenue outturn for 2017/2018 and in so doing to 
note that the figures are subject to external audit and final accounting 
adjustments (ref. paragraph 2.1);

 approve the recommendations regarding the treatment of specific service 
under / overspends as outlined (ref. paragraph 3.2);

 approve the provisional capital outturn for 2017/2018 and methods of 
scheme funding as outlined (ref. paragraphs 4.2 and 4.5);

 note the Prudential Indicator (ref. paragraph 4.3);

 note the levels of the earmarked reserves including those for the Housing 
Revenue Account and maintained schools (ref. paragraphs 6.1, 6.3 and 
6.4); and

 approve the recommendation that £1.4m is taken from the Treasury 
Management Prudential Borrowing Reserve and £0.6m from the 
Collection Fund Deficit Reserve (Council Tax and NNDR) and added to 
General Fund Working Balances, increasing them to £6,034,000 for the 
start of the 2018/19 financial year (ref. paragraph 7.2).

Steve Thompson
Director of Resources

Page 128



APPENDIX 5b

2017/2018 2017/2018 2017/2018

ADJUSTED VARIATION

GENERAL FUND NET REQUIREMENTS CASH

LIMIT

£ '000 £ '000 £ '000

CASH LIMITED BOTTOM LINE BUDGETS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 693 689 (4)

GOVERNANCE & PARTNERSHIP SERVICES 1,801 1,953 152

WARD BUDGETS 632 320 (312)

RESOURCES 5,704 5,585 (119)

PLACES 4,151 4,352 201

STRATEGIC LEISURE ASSETS 1,087 2,402 1,315

COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 42,308 42,307 (1)

ADULT SERVICES 52,461 51,801 (660)

CHILDRENS SERVICES 40,149 43,167 3,018

PUBLIC HEALTH 23 23 -  

BUDGETS OUTSIDE THE CASH LIMIT 13,466 13,918 452

CAPITAL CHARGES (30,477) (30,477) -  

SUB TOTAL - NET COST OF SERVICES 131,998 136,040 4,042

CONTRIBUTIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

CONTRIBUTION TO OTHER RESERVES 1,333 1,446 113

TRANSFER TO RESERVES - LEISURE ASSETS OVERSPEND -  (1,315) (1,315)

SCHOOL BALANCES -  (110) (110)

2016/17 UNDERSPEND FROM RESERVES -  (287) (287)

REVENUE CONSEQUENCES OF CAPITAL OUTLAY -  -  
CONTINGENCIES (8,017) (8,248) (231)

SUB TOTAL - CONTRIBUTIONS & CONTINGENCIES (6,684) (8,514) (1,830)

LEVIES

NORTH WEST REGIONAL FLOOD DEFENCE COMMITTEE 67 66 (1)

APPRENTICESHIP LEVY 385 306 (79)

SUB TOTAL - LEVIES 452 372 (80)

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE TO BE MET FROM PUBLIC FUNDS 125,766 127,898 2,132

LESS: AMOUNT (TAKEN FROM)/ADDED TO WORKING BALANCES 0 (2,132) (2,132)

NET REQUIREMENT AFTER WORKING BALANCES 125,766 125,766 0

Balance at 1st April 2017 3,166

Contribution from Earmarked Reserves 3,000

Movement in Balances (2,132)

General Balances at 31 March 2018 4,034

BLACKPOOL COUNCIL

GENERAL FUND PROVISIONAL OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2018

TOTAL SUMMARY

ACTUALS

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX  5c

 

 

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 596                       594                       (2)
HR, ORGANISATION AND WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 78                         75                         (3)
CORPORATE DELIVERY UNIT 91                         93                         2                            
HOUSING (72) (73) (1)

NET COST OF SERVICES 693                       689                       (4)

Budget Holder: Mr Neil Jack- Chief Executive

Finance Manager: Mr S Maher / Mrs K Whyatt

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 3,863                    4,189                    326                       
PREMISES 92                         259                       167                       
TRANSPORT 19                         15                         (4)
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 401                       753                       352                       
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 317                       539                       222                       
TRANSFER PAYMENTS (13) 322                       335                       
SUPPORT SERVICES 1,161                    1,179                    18                         
CAPITAL CHARGES 16                         16                         -                             
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (41) -                             41                         
                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 5,815                    7,272                    1,457                    

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 243                       287                       (44)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS -                             668                       (668)
RECHARGES 4,133                    4,154                    (21)
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 746                       1,474                    (728)
                    TOTAL  INCOME 5,122                    6,583                    (1,461)

NET EXPENDITURE 693                       689                       (4)

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2018

SUMMARY

Page 131



APPENDIX 5d

 

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE 2,050                      2,039                          (11)
CUSTOMER CARE & LIFE EVENTS (335) (164) 171
CORPORATE LEGAL SERVICES 86                            78                                (8)

NET COST OF SERVICES 1,801                      1,953                          152                           

Budget Holder: Mr Mark Towers - Director of Governance and Partnership Services

Finance Manager: Mr S Maher / Mrs K Whyatt

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18
ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 3,587                      3,603                          16                             
PREMISES 210                         223                              13                             
TRANSPORT 40                            53                                13                             
SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 599                         803                              204                           
THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 161                         168                              7                               
TRANSFER PAYMENTS -                               -                                   -                                
SUPPORT SERVICES 872                         890                              18                             
CAPITAL CHARGES 68                            68                                -                                
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (66) -                                   66                             
                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 5,471                      5,808                          337                           

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 2,149                      2,089                          (60)
GOVERNMENT GRANTS -                               38                                38                             
RECHARGES 876                         906                              30                             
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 645                         822                              177                           
                    TOTAL  INCOME 3,670                      3,855                          185                           

NET EXPENDITURE 1,801                      1,953                          152                           

GOVERNANCE AND PARTNERSHIP SERVICES

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2018

SUMMARY

Page 132



APPENDIX 5e

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES -                         -                       -                           

PREMISES -                         -                       -                           

TRANSPORT -                         -                       -                           

SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 632                    323                 (309)

THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS -                         -                       -                           

TRANSFER PAYMENTS -                         -                       -                           

SUPPORT SERVICES -                         -                       -                           

CAPITAL CHARGES -                         -                       -                           
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET -                         -                       -                           

                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 632                    323                 (309)

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS -                         -                       -                           

GOVERNMENT GRANTS -                         -                       -                           

RECHARGES -                         -                       -                           
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS -                         3                      (3)

                    TOTAL  INCOME - 3 (3)

NET EXPENDITURE 632 320 (312)

Budget Holder: Mrs Lorraine Hurst - Head of Democratic Governance

Finance Manager: Mr S Maher / Mrs K Whyatt

WARD BUDGETS

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2018

SUMMARY

Page 133



APPENDIX 5f

 

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

PROCUREMENT, ENERGY & PROJECTS 258                    185                     (73)

REVENUES & EXCHEQUER SERVICES 1,231                1,191                  (40)

BENEFITS (948) (1,017) (69)

ICT SERVICES (499) (500) (1)

CUSTOMER FIRST 20                      4                          (16)

ACCOUNTANCY 51                      38                       (13)

RISK SERVICES 82                      88                       6                           

PROPERTY SERVICES & INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 5,509                5,596                  87                        

NET COST OF SERVICES 5,704                5,585                  (119)

Budget Holder: Mr Steve Thompson - Director of Resources

Finance Manager: Mr Mark Golden

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 11,904              11,767               (137)

PREMISES 6,496                6,688                  192                      

TRANSPORT 119                    82                       (37)

SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 3,587                3,793                  206                      

THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 46                      66                       20                        

TRANSFER PAYMENTS 215                    213                     (2)

SUPPORT SERVICES 3,233                3,226                  (7)

CAPITAL CHARGES 8,986                8,976                  (10)
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (439) -                          439                      

                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 34,147              34,811               664                      

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 3,593                3,993                  (400)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 525                    539                     (14)

RECHARGES 21,035              20,777               258                      
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 3,290                3,917                  (627)

                    TOTAL  INCOME 28,443              29,226               (783)

NET EXPENDITURE 5,704                5,585                  (119)

RESOURCES

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2018

SUMMARY

Page 134



APPENDIX  5g

 

 

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 372                    369                    (3)

GROWING PLACES 390                    452                    62                   

VISITOR ECONOMY 3,389                 3,531                 142                 

NET COST OF SERVICES 4,151                 4,352                 201                 

Budget Holder: Mr A Cavill- Director of Place

Finance Manager: Mr S Maher / Mrs K Whyatt

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 5,084                 5,970                 886                 

PREMISES 714                    818                    104                 

TRANSPORT 109                    147                    38                   

SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 2,671                 4,620                 1,949             

THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 20                       93                      73                   

TRANSFER PAYMENTS 56                       110                    54                   

SUPPORT SERVICES 2,201                 2,208                 7                     

CAPITAL CHARGES 424                    588                    164                 
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (394) -                          394                 

                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 10,885               14,554              3,669             

21,594           

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 1,192                 1,787                 (595)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 120                    1,018                 (898)

RECHARGES 3,328                 3,298                 30                   
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 2,094                 4,099                 (2,005)

                    TOTAL  INCOME 6,734                 10,202              (3,468)

NET EXPENDITURE 4,151                 4,352                 201                 

PLACES

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2018

SUMMARY

Page 135



APPENDIX  5h

 

 

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

BUSINESS SERVICES 458 601                       143                     

LEISURE AND CATERING 3,070 3,158                    88                       

PUBLIC PROTECTION (22) (47) (25)

COASTAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL PARTNERSHIPS 4,431 4,428                    (3)

HIGHWAYS AND TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT SERVICES 15,092 14,992                  (100)

STREET CLEANSING AND WASTE 18,609 18,544                  (65)

INTEGRATED TRANSPORT 670 631                       (39)

NET COST OF SERVICES 42,308              42,307                  (1)

Budget Holder: Mr John Blackledge - Director of Community and Environmental Services

Finance Managers: Mr S Maher / Mrs K Whyatt

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 15,740 15,575                  (165)

PREMISES 2,209 3,989                    1,780                 

TRANSPORT 2,881 4,050                    1,169                 

SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 4,974 6,958                    1,984                 

THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 22,242 22,276                  34                       

TRANSFER PAYMENTS 284 235                       (49)

SUPPORT SERVICES 5,083 5,096                    13                       

CAPITAL CHARGES 16,664 17,892                  1,228                 

CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (879) (450) 429                     

                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 69,198 75,621                  6,423                 

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 9,547 9,676                    (129)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 2,759 2,774                    (15)

RECHARGES 10,484 11,304                  (820)

OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 4,100 9,560                    (5,460)

                    TOTAL  INCOME 26,890              33,314                  (6,424)

NET EXPENDITURE 42,308 42,307                  (1)

COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL  SERVICES

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2018

SUMMARY

Page 136



APPENDIX 5i

 

 

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

ADULT SOCIAL CARE 4,502                4,312                   (190)

CARE & SUPPORT 5,988                6,018                   30                      

COMMISSIONING & CONTRACTS 846                    770                      (76)

ADULTS COMMISSIONING PLACEMENTS 40,468              40,059                 (409)

ADULTS SAFEGUARDING 657                    642                      (15)

NET COST OF SERVICES 52,461              51,801                 (660)

Budget Holder: Karen Smith - Director of Adult Social Services

Finance Manager: Mr Mark Golden

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 16,509              16,318                 (191)

PREMISES 57                      133                      76                      

TRANSPORT 822                    1,032                   210                    

SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 2,771                3,096                   325                    

THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 49,720              49,051                 (669)

TRANSFER PAYMENTS 5,037                5,264                   227                    

SUPPORT SERVICES 2,558                2,564                   6                         

CAPITAL CHARGES 348                    350                      2                         
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (163) (100) 63                      

                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 77,659              77,708                 49                      

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 14,022              14,537                 (515)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 232                    556                      (324)

RECHARGES 371                    369                      2                         
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 10,573              10,445                 128                    

                    TOTAL  INCOME 25,198              25,907                 (709)

NET EXPENDITURE 52,461              51,801                 (660)

ADULT SERVICES

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2018

SUMMARY

Page 137



APPENDIX 5j

 

 

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

LOCAL SCHOOLS BUDGET 20,768                 20,769              1                        

BUSINESS SUPPORT AND RESOURCES 2,160                   2,048                (112)

EDUCATION 25,232                 25,250              18                      

EARLY HELP FOR CHILDREN & FAMILIES 4,808                   4,394                (414)

CHILDREN'S SOCIAL CARE 30,656                 34,014              3,358                

GRANTS (43,475) (43,308) 167                    

NET COST OF SERVICES 40,149                 43,167              3,018                

Budget Holder: Diane Booth - Director of Children's Services

Finance Manager : Mr Mark Golden

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ADJUSTED ACTUAL VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 47,519                 47,961              442                    

PREMISES 2,156                   2,222                66                      

TRANSPORT 2,663                   2,884                221                    

SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 17,716                 18,157              441                    

THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 24,332                 27,147              2,815                

TRANSFER PAYMENTS 8,500                   8,774                274                    

SUPPORT SERVICES 5,790                   5,790                -                         

CAPITAL CHARGES 2,013                   2,013                -                         
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET (733) -                         733                    

                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 109,956               114,948           4,992                

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 1,456                   1,458                (2)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 51,942                 52,424              (482)

RECHARGES 8,725                   9,191                (466)
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 7,684                   8,708                (1,024)

                    TOTAL  INCOME 69,807                 71,781              (1,974)

NET EXPENDITURE 40,149                 43,167              3,018                

CHILDREN'S SERVICES

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2018

SUMMARY

Page 138



APPENDIX 5k

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ADJUSTED ACTUALS VARIATION

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 1,041                    1,022                 (19)

PREMISES -                             -                          -                             

TRANSPORT 15                          8                         (7)

SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 20                          23                       3                            

THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 19,945                  20,397               452                        

TRANSFER PAYMENTS -                             -                          -                             

SUPPORT SERVICES 416                        392                     (24)

CAPITAL CHARGES -                             -                          -                             
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET -                             -                          -                             

                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 21,437                  21,842               405                        

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS -                             -                          -                             

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 18,914                  18,914               -                             

RECHARGES -                             -                          -                             
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 2,500                    2,905                 (405)

                    TOTAL  INCOME 21,414 21,819 (405)

NET EXPENDITURE 23 23 - 

Budget Holder: Dr Arif Rajpura - Director of Public Health

Finance Manager: Mr Mark Golden

PUBLIC HEALTH

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2018

SUMMARY

Page 139



APPENDIX 5l

 

 

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ADJUSTED ACTUALS VARIATION

FUNCTIONS OF SERVICE CASH LIMIT

£000 £000 £000

TREASURY MANAGEMENT 10,239             10,134           (105)

PARKING SERVICES (4,085) (3,395) 690                   

CORPORATE SUBSCRIPTIONS 191                   193                 2                        

HOUSING BENEFITS 2,021                2,019             (2)

COUNCIL TAX AND NNDR COST OF COLLECTION 304                   347                 43                     

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (1,067) (1,161) (94)

LAND CHARGES (52) (51) 1                        

CONCESSIONARY FARES 3,813                3,838             25                     

EMPLOYERS PREVIOUS YEARS PENSION LIABILITY 2,892                2,940             48                     
NEW HOMES BONUS (790) (946) (156)

NET COST OF SERVICES 13,466             13,918           452                   

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

ACTUAL ADJUSTED FORECAST

SUBJECTIVE  ANALYSIS CASH LIMIT OUTTURN

£000 £000 £000

EXPENDITURE

EMPLOYEES 3,735                3,933             198                   

PREMISES 1,125                1,207             82                     

TRANSPORT 29                     24                   (5)

SUPPLIES AND SERVICES 5,111                7,472             2,361                

THIRD PARTY PAYMENTS 72                     127                 55                     

TRANSFER PAYMENTS 75,921             76,173           252                   

SUPPORT SERVICES 4,040                4,056             16                     

CAPITAL CHARGES 15,991             12,861           (3,130)
CORPORATE SAVINGS TARGET -                        -                      -                         

                    TOTAL EXPENDITURE 106,024           105,853         (171)

INCOME

CUSTOMER & CLIENT RECEIPTS 7,681                6,814             867                   

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 76,758             77,281           (523)

RECHARGES 3,499                3,535             (36)
OTHER GRANTS, REIMBURSEMENTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 4,620                4,305             315                   

                    TOTAL  INCOME 92,558             91,935           623                   

NET EXPENDITURE 13,466             13,918           452                   

BUDGETS OUTSIDE THE CASH LIMIT

GENERAL FUND OUTTURN YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2018

SUMMARY

Page 140



Appendix 5m

Expenditure for Capital Purposes PAYMENTS CAPITAL GOVERNMENT OTHER PRUDENTIAL TOTAL

IN 2017/18 RECEIPTS AND OTHER SOURCES BORROWING

2017/18 GRANTS

£ £ £ £ £ £

Director Responsible for

Children's Services

Primary Schools

Bispham Endowed 51,821 0 51,821 0 0 51,821

Boundary 6,124 0 6,124 0 0 6,124

Claremont 31,037 0 31,037 0 0 31,037

Kincraig 5,540 0 5,540 0 0 5,540

Moor Park Lighting 19,296 0 19,296 0 0 19,296

Stanley 21,106 0 21,106 0 0 21,106

Secondary Schemes

Bispham High 199,491 0 195,117 4,374 0 199,491

Highfield 31,949 0 (6,536) 38,485 0 31,949

Other Schemes

Highfurlong Special 3,780 0 3,780 0 0 3,780

Woodlands 1,374,158 0 1,374,158 0 0 1,374,158

Westbury 13,698 0 13,698 0 0 13,698

Early Years 313,512 0 313,512 0 0 313,512

Autism Innovation 1,885 0 1,885 0 0 1,885

TOTAL Children's Services 2,073,397 0 2,030,538 42,859 0 2,073,397

Director Responsible for
Adult Services

I-Switch Scheme 238,674 0 238,674 0 0 238,674

Adult Services Schemes 644,848 0 644,848 0 0 644,848

Regeneration - Renovation Grant 1,513,050 0 1,513,050 0 0 1,513,050

Care & Repair 73,277 73,277 0 0 0 73,277

Winter warmth 68,670 0 68,670 0 0 68,670

TOTAL Adult Services 2,538,519 73,277 2,465,242 0 0 2,538,519

Director Responsible for

Community and Environment

Other Schemes

Anchorsholme Seawall Scheme 409,554 0 409,554 0 0 409,554

Sand Dunes 121,943 0 121,943 0 0 121,943

 PROVISIONAL CAPITAL OUTTURN STATEMENT 2017/18

P
age 141



Appendix 5m

Marton Mere Dam 35,131 0 35,131 0 0 35,131

Sea Water Management Plan Study 11,821 0 11,821 0 0 11,821

Total Other schemes 578,449 0 578,449 0 0 578,449

Transport

Bridges 3,038,791 0 3,038,791 0 0 3,038,791

Blackpool/Fleetwood Tramway Upgrade 4,771,205 0 6,932,674 1,142,896 (3,304,365) 4,771,205

TOTAL TRANSPORT 7,809,996 0 9,971,465 1,142,896 (3,304,365) 7,809,996

TOTAL Community and Environment 8,388,445 0 10,549,914 1,142,896 (3,304,365) 8,388,445

Director Responsible for
Place

Housing - HRA

Adaptation Work for the Elderly & Disabled 409,005 0 0 409,005 0 409,005

Work towards Decent Homes Standard 7,597,327 325,531 121,246 7,150,550 0 7,597,327

TOTAL HOUSING - HRA 8,006,332 325,531 121,246 7,559,555 0 8,006,332

Private Sector Housing

Foxhall Village 1,384,328 47,253 0 1,337,075 0 1,384,328

Crystal Road Scheme 27,160 0 27,160 0 0 27,160

TOTAL PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING 1,411,488 47,253 27,160 1,337,075 0 1,411,488

Transport

LTP - Local Safety Scheme 0

LTP - Maintenance 920,882 0 920,882 0 0 920,882

LTP - Parking Management 14,355 0 14,355 0 0 14,355

LTP - Public Transport Schemes 276,879 0 269,986 6,893 0 276,879

LTP - Traffic Management and Accessibility 500,730 0 500,730 0 0 500,730

LTP - Walking and Cycling 58,051 0 58,051 0 0 58,051

Quality Corridor 1,353,587 0 1,353,587 0 0 1,353,587

C Information Tech System 1,525,744 0 1,525,744 0 0 1,525,744

Total Transport Schemes 4,650,228 0 4,643,335 6,893 0 4,650,228

Other Schemes

Leisure Assets 149,907 0 144,115 0 5,792 149,907

Leopold Grove 146,015 0 146,015 0 0 146,015

Grundy Art Gallery 12,620 0 0 12,620 0 12,620

Airport Acquisition 4,468,428 0 0 0 4,468,428 4,468,428

Tracey Emin Acquisition 55,000 0 0 55,000 0 55,000

Airport Marr Land 615,333 0 0 615,333 0 615,333

The Hop 2-4 King Street 256,301 256,301 0 0 0 256,301

Helicentre Sq. Gate Lane 410,584 112,584 210,000 0 88,000 410,584

Conference Centre 2,202,652 0 2,202,652 0 0 2,202,652

 Acquisition 51 King Street 115,996 0 93,969 0 22,027 115,996

CBD Phase 2 1,045,469 0 0 0 1,045,469 1,045,469

Wilkinson's Acquisition 0 0 0 5,500,000 (5,500,000) 0

Total Other Schemes 9,478,305 368,885 2,796,752 6,182,952 129,716 9,478,305

P
age 142



Appendix 5m

Total Place 23,546,353 741,669 7,588,493 15,086,475 129,716 23,546,353

Director Responsible for

Governance and Regulatory Services

Carleton Chapel Doors 1,694 0 0 66,064 (64,370) 1,694

Total Governance & Regulatory 1,694 0 0 66,064 (64,370) 1,694

Director Responsible for

Property Management

Remodelling CLC Grange Park 683,851 0 0 0 683,851 683,851

Municipal Buildings Works 2,038,426 400,000 0 1,638,426 0 2,038,426

Central Business District Phase 1 309,993 1,800,001 0 0 (1,490,008) 309,993

Total Project Management 3,032,270 2,200,001 0 1,638,426 (806,157) 3,032,270

Other Schemes

Capital Repairs, Renewal and Maintenance 218,224 0 0 218,224 0 218,224

ICT Refresh 733,355 0 0 733,355 0 733,355

Total Other Schemes 951,579 0 0 951,579 0 951,579

TOTAL Resources 3,983,849 2,200,001 0 2,590,005 (806,157) 3,983,849

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 40,532,257 3,014,947 22,634,187 18,928,299 (4,045,176) 40,532,257

 REVENUE

 Revenue 8,644,818

School Contribution 42,859

Modus 5,500,000

Job Centre Plus 1,638,426

Hollinwood FDC 1,069,499

Other Foxhall 4,146

Enterprise Zone Growth Fund 615,333

United Utilities 263,429

Lancashire County Council 1,142,896

BTS Contribution 6,893

18,928,299

Resources

P
age 143



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: EXECUTIVE

Relevant Officer: Steve Thompson, Director of Resources

Relevant Cabinet Member: Councillor Simon Blackburn, Leader of the Council 

Date of Meeting: 18 June 2018

TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 The Treasury Management Outturn Report for the year ended 31 March 2018 and its 
Annexes 1 to 5.

2.0 Recommendation:

2.1 To note the report concerning Treasury Management activities for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2018.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation:

3.1 At its meeting on the 28 February 2014 the Council agreed to adopt the CIPFA  
Treasury Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross-Sectoral 
Guidance Notes (2011 Edition). A feature of the Code is that periodic reports on 
Treasury Management activities are submitted to the Executive and the attached 
report relates to Treasury Management activities for the 2017/18 financial year.

3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or 
approved by the Council?  No

3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council’s approved 
budget? Yes

3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:                                                                                   

None

Page 145

Agenda Item 6



4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 The relevant Council Priority is “The Economy: Maximising growth and opportunity 
across Blackpool”
 

5.0

5.1

5.2

Background Information

One of the requirements of CIPFA’s (Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy) 2011 Prudential Code and Treasury Management Codes of Practice is 
that periodic reports on the Council’s treasury management activities are submitted 
to the Executive. This annual report on performance is for the 2017/18 financial year.

The Council manages its cashflow and long-term financing of capital investments in 
accordance with its annual Treasury Management Strategy. The 2017/18 Strategy 
was approved by the Council on 23 February 2017.

5.3 Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No

5.4 List of Appendices:

Appendix 6a: Treasury Management Outturn Report 2017/18
Annex 1 – External debt fallout chart, maturity values as at 31 March 2018
Annex 2 – Official Bank (Base) Rate movements September 2008 to March 2018
Annex 3 – Treasury Management Summary Statistics for the year 2017/18
Annex 4 – Comparison of Budget to Actuals 2017/18
Annex 5 – Treasury Management Prudential Indicators 2017/18

6.0

6.1

Legal considerations:

None.

7.0

7.1

Human Resources considerations:

None

8.0

8.1

Equalities considerations:

None.

9.0 Financial considerations:

9.1 Please see the Report at Appendix 6a and its Annexes 1 to 5.

Page 146



10.0 Risk management considerations:

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

Liquidity Risk (accessibility and/or running out of cash)

Market Risk (Movements in interest rates – yield)

Credit Risk (investment counterparties might default – security)

Operational Risk (adequacy of internal processes)

11.0 Ethical considerations:

11.1 None.

12.0 Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:

12.1 With the Council’s Treasury Management Panel.

13.0 Background papers:

13.1 None.

14.0 Key decision information:

14.1 Is this a key decision? Yes

14.2 If so, Forward Plan reference number:      16/2018

14.3 If a key decision, is the decision required in less than five days? No

14.4 If yes, please describe the reason for urgency:

15.0 Call-in information:

15.1 Are there any grounds for urgency, which would cause this decision to 
be exempt from the call-in process?  No

15.2 If yes, please give reason:

Page 147



TO BE COMPLETED BY THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC GOVERNANCE

16.0 Scrutiny Committee Chairman (where appropriate):

Date informed: 8 June 2018 Date approved:      

17.0 Declarations of interest (if applicable):

17.1      

18.0 Executive decision:

18.1      

18.2 Date of Decision:   

     
19.0 Reason(s) for decision:

     

19.1 Date Decision published:

     

20.0 Executive Members in attendance:  

20.1      

21.0 Call-in:  

21.1      

Page 148



22.0 Notes:  

22.1      

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 6a: BLACKPOOL COUNCIL
REPORT

of the
DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

to the
EXECUTIVE

on
 18 June 2018

TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

                            
1. INTRODUCTION

One of the requirements of CIPFA’s (Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy) 
2017 Prudential Code and Treasury Management Codes of Practice is that periodic reports 
on the Council’s treasury management activities are submitted to the Executive. This annual 
report on performance is for the 2017/18 financial year.

The Council manages its cashflow and long-term financing of capital investments in 
accordance with its annual Treasury Management Strategy. The 2017/18 Strategy was 
approved by the Council on 23rd February 2017 and its objectives are as follows:

 to set the framework for managing the Council’s investments and cashflows and 
controlling its banking, money market and capital market transactions

 to plan and secure appropriate borrowing in order to finance the Capital Programme for 
2017/18 and the next two years, at the lowest cost to the Council

 to achieve the best rates of return from the investment of temporary surplus cash 
balances commensurate with risk, subject to the overriding principle of maintaining an 
acceptable level of security

 to control effectively the risks associated with these transactions

 to comply with appropriate codes and regulations including the International Financial 
Reporting Standards as they apply to Treasury Management.

In delivering the above objectives the Council will:

 decide its own borrowing limits taking into account  its financial situation, long-term plans 
and in particular what it thinks is affordable now and sustainable in the future 

 monitor these limits using performance measures called Prudential indicators. All local 
authorities must use the same system of performance measurement and risk control. 
The borrowing limits have been set in accordance with the Council’s Medium-term 
Financial Plan.

Page 151



2. BORROWING TRANSACTIONS 2017/18

2.1 Loans Raised

The Council’s total borrowing powers at 1st April 2017 (the Authorised Limit) stood at £379m. 
New long-term borrowing of £9.3m was taken in July 2017 at a rate of 1.48% and will be 
repaid in equal instalments of principal over the next 10 years.  

The 2017/18 borrowing requirement for the remainder of the capital programme was 
deferred until such time that interest rates are judged to be favourable to the Council. This 
action reduces the Council’s exposure to counterparty risk whilst enabling savings to be 
made in long-term borrowing costs. The Treasury Management Panel’s view is that it will 
continue to monitor interest rates and borrow only when market conditions are favourable.

Temporary borrowing has been required to deal with the normal peaks and troughs of the 
cashflow, including creditor payments, grant receipts, etc. It has also been required to cover 
troughs in cashflow due to the delay in taking new long-term borrowing.

2.2 Loans Repaid

During the year £2.2m was repaid in addition to the temporary borrowing referred to in 2.1 
above.

Of the £2.2m loans repaid which are referred to above: a £1m loan was repaid when it 
matured in July 2017 and a £500k loan was repaid when it matured in December 2017, both 
to the Public Works Loan Board. The remaining repayments relate to loans taken on an 
equal instalments of principal basis and total £700k.

2.3 Loans Refinanced

From time to time opportunities arise to repay existing loans and replace them with lower 
cost alternative loans. Where this arises savings in annual interest costs can be achieved 
which keep the Council’s overall borrowing costs as low as possible.

In December 2017 the Council agreed the early repayment of the remaining £18.8m of Local 
Government Reorganisation Debt which was taken on by the Council when it separated from 
Lancashire County Council and became a Unitary Authority in 1998. The early repayment 
was financed using temporary borrowing and will enable the Treasury Management Panel to 
manage the borrowing more efficiently and effectively within its existing loan portfolio.

2.4 Summary

The Council’s overall pooled borrowing rate on its long-term debt decreased from 4.93% in 
2016/17 to 4.88% in 2017/18. This change occurred as a result of the movement in loans 
referred to in 2.2 above.

Temporary borrowing has been required at certain times during the year in order to manage 
the peaks and troughs in cashflows. The Council’s borrowing activities for the 2017/18 
financial year are summarised on the next page:

Page 152



Loan financing
at 1 Apr 2017 

Additions (Reductions) Loan financing
at 31 Mar 2018

£M £M £M £M

PWLB 47.2 9.3 (2.2) 54.3
Market Loans 38.0 - - 38.0
Temporary Loans 91.5 522.2 (461.7) 152.0
Sub total      176.7 531.5 (463.9) 244.3
Local Government
Reorganisation
(LGR) Loan 18.8 - (18.8) -
TOTAL Loans
Temporary Investment

195.5
(10.7)

531.5
(400.4)

(482.7)
402.0

244.3
(9.1)

NET External Loans 184.8 131.1 (80.7) 235.2

The revised maturity profile for the total external long-term loans outstanding as at 31st 
March 2018 is shown in Annex 1 of this report.

3. INVESTMENT TRANSACTIONS 2017/18

3.1 Overview

The Bank of England Official Bank Rate - the ‘Base Rate’, i.e. the general level to which all 
short-term interest rates are related started the year at 0.25%. On the 2nd November the 
Bank of England increased the rate to 0.50% and the rate remained at this level for the rest 
of the year. 

Annex 2 shows this interest rate graphically from 1st September 2008 to 31st March 2018.

3.2 Receipts and Payments during the Year

Annex 3 of this Report summarises the Council’s cashflows during the year, short-term 
interest receivable and payable, year-end loans outstanding and investment balances.

3.3 Investment Earnings 

Interest which has been earned from temporary investments is included in Annex 3, together 
with a comparison with the budgeted income for the financial year. Actual investment 
earnings, included within the short-term net receivable/payable figure, are £21k and these 
are referred to in Annex 4 within the note on higher cash balances.

3.4 Approved Institutions for Investments

The Treasury Management Panel will continue to manage the Council’s treasury and 
investment affairs in a cautious and prudent manner taking account of changes in the 
economic climate. The Council’s Treasury Management Policy restricts investments to a list 
of approved institutions.  Each institution has its own maximum investment limit and 
timeframe and the security of funds is the overriding factor.

Page 153



The list comprises UK-registered banks along with their subsidiaries, the Nationwide and 
Coventry Building Societies, upper tier local authorities and certain other public sector 
bodies plus short-term gilts and UK treasury bills. The list continues to be reviewed regularly 
in the light of changes in credit ratings and market intelligence.

4. REVENUE OUTTURN 2017/18

The Treasury Management revenue account for 2017/18 had net expenditure of £10,134k, 
an improvement of £105k over the budget of £10,239k.

A comparison of the Treasury Management revenue account with the budget for 2017/18 is 
set out in Annex 4.  

The debt servicing costs for 2017/18 decreased due to the use of cheaper temporary loans 
and the deferral of any new long-term borrowing. 

Low levels of interest available on temporary cash balances coupled with fewer opportunities 
to restructure the long-term loan portfolio mean that further savings cannot be guaranteed in 
future years.

5. PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

The Prudential Indicators and Limits for 2017/18 are set out within Annex 5 to this Report.

6. RECOMMENDATION

The Executive is asked to note the report on treasury management activities for the financial 
year ending 31 March 2018.

S. THOMPSON

DIRECTOR OF RESOURCES

Page 154



 

  -

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

D
e
b
t 
m

a
tu

ri
n

g
 b

y
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r,

 £
'0

0
0
s
 

Financial year 

External debt fallout chart, maturity values, as at 31st March 2018 

PWLB debt £'000s Market loans including LOBOs £'000s

P
age 155



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Official Bank (Base) Rate movements September 2008 

Page 157



 

 

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

O
ff

ic
ia

l 
B

a
n
k
 (

B
a
s
e
) 

R
a
te

 
 

Official Bank (Base) Rate movements September 2008 - March 2018 

Page 158



ANNEX 3

SHORT TERM INTEREST CASH FLOWS DURING THE YEAR
NET (RECEIVABLE)/PAYABLE

RECEIPTS £'000s

£'000s

Loans & Investments, total movements

Budgeted for year 405 (The transaction totals, NOT the balance) (A) 933,457

Actual for year 415 * Council Tax & NNDR 92,627

* (includes £21k interest receivable)

Government Grants/Rate Support Grant 139,465

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS MADE Housing Benefit & Subsidy 73,392

Call Accounts & Money Market

Other income, VAT reclaimed 125,712

Number in the year 158 TOTAL OF ALL AMOUNTS RECEIVED

INTO THE BANK ACCOUNTS 1,364,653

Total value of those transactions in and out £400m

Average interest rate earned 0.21% PAYMENTS £'000s

Loans & Investments, total movements

(The transaction totals, NOT the balance) (B) 864,235

SHORT TERM LOANS MADE
General Creditors 339,857

Number in year 126 Salaries & Wages 87,442

Total value of those transactions in and out £522m Housing Benefits 63,631

Average interest rate paid 0.40% Precepts, Police & Fire 9,005

TOTAL OF ALL AMOUNTS PAID

OUT OF THE BANK ACCOUNTS 1,364,170

The difference between total amounts received and paid equals

YEAR END LOANS OUTSTANDING the movement on the current account balances during the year and

01/04/17 31/03/18 not solely the movement on Loan and Investment balances 

£'000s SOURCE £'000s which is shown in the table below.

RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOWS WITH
47,153 Public Works Loan Board 54,225 THE  LOAN & INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS

Receipts (A) 933,457

38,000 Market Loans 38,000 Payments (B) (864,235)

Net (payment)/receipt into current a/cs 69,222

91,500 Temporary Loans 152,000

176,653 TOTAL LOANS OUTSTANDING 244,225 Total loans at end of year 244,225

Total loans at start of year (176,653)

  Net loans taken out 67,572

YEAR END INVESTMENT BALANCES
01/04/17 31/03/18 Investments at end of year (9,050)

£'000s CHANGE £'000s Investments at start of year 10,700

6,700 Investments (Call accounts) 4,050   Net decrease in investments 1,650

4,000 Investments (Money Market) 5,000

Net (payment)/receipt into current a/cs 69,222

10,700 Total 9,050

TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT

SUMMARY STATISTICS FOR THE YEAR 2017/18

Page 159



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 4

Comparison of Budget to Actuals 2017/18

The annual budget monitoring information for 2017/18 shows a (£105k) full-year 
(favourable) variance on the £10,239k Treasury Management Budget.

The components of this variance are as follows: 

2017/18 Full 
Year Variance

(Fav)/Adv 
£’000s

The use of temporary borrowing and internal financing have 
enabled borrowing to be delayed, thus achieving savings against 
interest payable (1,227)

Shortfall of Interest Received on Business Loans Fund 1,220

Reduced interest charged by LCC on LGR Debt (12)

Higher cash balances than planned have been maintained during 
2017/18 and this has contributed to an increase in the level of 
temporary investment income (Actual £21k minus Budget £2k) (19)

Other miscellaneous items including recharges, brokerage and 
SORP premia costs (67)

2017/18 full-year (favourable)/adverse position      (105)

Page 161



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 5

'Treasury Management' Prudential Indicators 2017/18

Prudential Indicator 2017/18 Full-year planned Prudential Indicator 2017/18 Actual Prudential Indicator

(Paragraph references are to the Annual Report to Council)

Prudential Indicators: the actual position 2017/18

Prudential Indicators for Affordability

Prudential Indicators for Prudence

Prudential Indicators for Treasury Management 

(B, 8.8) Gross compared to CFR 2017/18 Gross Debt: £336.8m, CFR: £379.4m

Lower limit Upper limit

< 12 months Nil% 18% < 12 months 0.0%

12 to within 24 mths Nil% 18% 12 to within 24 mths 2.9%

24 mths, within 5 yrs Nil% 30% 24 mths, within 5 yrs 16.1%

5 to within 10 years 2.0% 60% 5 to within 10 years 13.7%

10 to within 30 years 2.0% 70% 10 to within 30 years 23.6%

30 years and above 15% 90% 30 years and above 43.7%

This Indicator is being complied with.

£77.3m

Not permitted; 3 months maximum

£177.0m

£354.0m

£166.9m

The Indicator is being complied with.Borrowing < estimated CFR except in the short 

term.

£368.0m 

£11.4m 

Maximum Gross Debt: £336.8m, CFR: £379.4m

£11.4m. 

£379.4m 

3.2%

9.9%

13.9%

Year end position is £235.2m

Actual % at 31.3.18

Year end position is £235.2m

Year end position is £92.5m

Adopted

£379.4m 

Adopted.

(*) Long Term Liabilities no higher than £93.0m

3.2%

12.0%The combined ratio of financing costs to net 

revenue stream. 2017/18

(*) Borrowing no higher than £284.0m

£368.0m. (C, 3.3) Estimates of the Capital Financing 

Requirement, non-HRA. 31.3.18

(*) Borrowing no higher than £268.0m

(*) Long Term Liabilities no higher than £95.4m

(B, 8.7) Prudential limits for principal sums 

invested for periods longer than 364 days.

(B, 8.8) Variable interest rate exposure. Upper 

limit on loans. 2017/18 

(B, 8.8) Fixed loan interest rate exposure. 

2017/18

(C, 5.7) Operational Boundary. 2017/18

(C, 3.4) Net borrowing and the Capital 

Financing Requirement.

(C, 5.7) Authorised Limit. 2017/18

(B, 1.4) Adoption of the CIPFA Codes of 

Practice and Investment Guidance issued by 

MHCLG for Treasury Management - 2017 

Edition.

(C, 3.3) The combined estimates of the 

Capital Financing Requirement. 31.3.18

(B, 8.8) Prudential limits for the maturity 

structure of borrowing.

(C, 3.3) Estimates of the Capital Financing 

Requirement, HRA. 31.3.18

Year end position is £92.5m

(C, 6.2) The ratio of financing costs to net 

revenue stream, non-HRA. 2017/18

(C, 6.2) The ratio of financing costs to net 

revenue stream, HRA. 2017/18

£379.4m 

£327.7m

Actual figure is reported at the 31st March 2018

Actual figure is reported at the 31st March 2018

Actual Capital Financing Requirement as at 

31/03/18 (Including HRA)

Actual Net External debt as at 31/03/18

11.3%

Page 163



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 BLACKPOOL AIRPORT ENTERPRISE ZONE MASTERPLAN: DELIVERY PLAN
	Appendix 2b  - EZ Marketing Strategy - final

	3 COUNCIL HOUSING DEVELOPMENT ON THE SITE OF THE FORMER HOYLE HOUSE
	4 CONSIDERATION OF A LEASE FOR THE MUSEUM PROJECT
	5 PROVISIONAL OUTTURN 2017/2018
	Appendix 5a Provisional Outturn Report 1718
	Appendix 5b - Summary
	Appendices 5c - 5l- Summaries
	Appendix 5m  Updated Capital outturn

	6 TREASURY MANAGEMENT OUTTURN REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
	Appendix 6a TreasuryManagementReport1718
	Annex1DebtFallout-1718(FinancialYear)
	Annex2BaseRates-1718
	Annex3Statistics-1718
	Annex4Outturn-1718
	Annex5PruIndicators-1718


